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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Ajanta pharma (Mauritius) Ltd,(Consolidated)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD and AJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUSINTENRATIoNAL LTD. are being audited under the local laws ofthe country by the staiuiorv auaitorfor the period lst Jan 2018 to 3lsr December 2018. Financiar sr."r."i.'"i'alaNii'iioora
MAURITIUS LTD. consolidated with Ajanta Pharma Mauritius Inlemational Ltd for the period lst April2017 to 3l st March 2018. The hold-ing company follows the period I st April zorz to rr st'lr.rarcrr lor s. lnorder to consolidate the accounts of Ajanta i?harma Mauritius Ltd lconsotioateay witn iirrt 

"r,rr"i"rai"g:"-TP9:I' w'e- have been appointed by the management ofthe company to audit the reinstated accounts ofAJANTA PHARMA MAURITIUS LTD. (consoridated) for the p.iiod tst Aprl 2017 to :i.i rr,1-.1,
20^18 under the companies Act in accordanie with generaily acceptid accountin! p.ir.ipi., in inaiu gra
AS).

we have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of AJANTAPHARMA MAURITIUS LTD (C^ONS0LIDATED) ("the company,l 
"o.nprising- 

oi tr,.consolidated Balance Sheet as at 3lst March 20rg, the consolidaied- Siatemeni of piofit andLoss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated cash Flow state;;nt, theconsolidated Statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, una u .r'nrury or tn.significant accounting policies and other eiplanatory ini'ormation (hereinafter referreJ to as ,,the
consolidated Ind AS financial 

_statements') prepaied in accordance wittr grouf accountingpolicies. followed by Ajanta' These consolidatld/standalone financial stateirenis rruu. u..nprepared solely to enable Ajanta to prepare its consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements
The company's Board of Diiectors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of theconsolidated Ind AS financial statements i, te.rr of the requ'irements of the 

-".f-i., a",2013. ('the Act") that give a true and fair view of the consolidat"a ,tut" oi urrui.llnnun.iulposition), consolidated profit (financial performance incruding otn". .o,np."t.^i".'ir."n,.r,
consolidated cash flows and consoridated statement of changis in equity of r. Co,nfuny i,accordance with the accounting principres 

_generaly accepted.in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133'ofth1 Act read wiih relevant rules issued thereunder. Therespective Board of Directors of the companies are responsible for maintenance oi ua"qru,"accounting records in accordance with the provisions ofthe Act ror rar"gru.oin! it. *r.o 

"r,r,"Company and^ for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregula"rities; ,rr. ."r*,i", -aapplication of appropriate accounting por-icies; making judgments and estimates that arereasonable and prudent; and the design, impremlntation irid ,iuint"nun." orla"qrut" 
-i,i.rnul

financial controls, that were operating effectir"ry fo. 
"nsriing 

the accuracy *a."irpr.,"** 
"rthe accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe consolidated Ind ASfinancial statements that give a true and 

-fair 
view ani are free from ,,ut".iul ,lrr,u,"'.an,,whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for-the purpose or p..purution-or tr,"consolidated Ind AS financiar statements by the Directors of the iompany, "r;f;;;;il.-- 

-
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d) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued

thereunder;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on

3lst March 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, none of the

directors of the company is disqualified as on 3lst March 2018 from being appointed as a

director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act.

f) the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating

effectiveness of such controls are adequate in accordance to the size and operations of the

company,

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule I I ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, in our opinion and to the best ofour
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

. ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,

requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable

losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund bythe Company;

/or G.RModi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's regi ber: ll26l7Wn

. CA Swapnil Modi
Partner
Membership number: 107 57 4
Mumbai
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24th April 2018

c) the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated statement of changes in Equity dealt

with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the

purpose of preparation ofthe consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018
1 . Corporate lnformation

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd. is a timited tiabitity company incorporated and
domicited in Mauritius and is a wholty owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd.,
lndia. The address of its registered office is located at BPML Building, Royat Road,
Goodlands, Mauritius. The Consotidated Financial statement ("CFS") comprises
the Company and its subsidiary (referred to cotlectively as the "Group").

The Group is primarily invotved in manufacturing and marketing of speciatity
pharmaceuticat quatity finished dosages.

The Consolidated FinanciaI Statements were authorised for issue by the
Company's Board of Directors on 24 Aprit, 2018.

2. Basis of preparation
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
as per the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5 notified under
Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, ('the Act') and other relevant Provisions of
the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruat basis and under the
historicat cost basis, which have been measured at fair value or revatued amount
wherever appticabte,

Basis of consolidation
These consolidated financial statements comprise the financia[ statement of the
Company and its wholty owned subsidiary Ajanta Pharma Mauritius (lnt't) Ltd. The
financial statements of the Company and its whotly owned subsidiariy have been
consotidated on a line by line basis by adding together the book vatues of like
items of assets, liabitities, incomes and expenses after etiminating intra-group
balances, intra-group transactions and unreatised profits resulting there from and
are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Group's
independent financial statements. The statement of profit and loss and each
component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders
of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements of the Company and its wholty owned
subsidiary have been consolidated using uniform accounting poticies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. When necessary,
adjustments are made to the financia[ statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting poticies into line with the Group's accounting policies. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries used in consolidation are drawn up to the same
reporting date as that of the Company i.e., year ended 31 March 2018.

Functional and Presentation Currency:
Functional currencies of the Company is Mauritian Rupee (MUR). These financial
statements are prepared &. presented in lndian Rupees (lNR) as it is the functional
currency of the Group.

4

Rounding of Amounts
Atl amounts disctosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

Current versus non-current classification:
The assets and [iabitities in the batance sheet are
current/ non-current ctassification.

presented based on

An asset is current when it is:
. Expected to be reatised or intended to be sotd or consumed in normat

operating cycle, or
r Held primari[y for the purpose of trading, or
. Expected to be reatised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
. Cash or cash equivalent untess restricted from being exchanged or used to

settle a tiabitity for at least twetve months after the reporting period.
Att other assets are ctassified as non-current,
A liability is current when it is:
o Expected to be settted in normal operating cycle, or
. Hetd primarily for the purpose of trading, or
o Due to be settted within twelve months after the reporting period, or
. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the tiabitity for at

teast twetve months after the reporting period.
Att other tiabitities are treated as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are classified as non-current assets and
tiabitities respectivety.

Operating cycle
Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normat time
between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivatents,
the Group has determined its operating cycte as 12 months for the purpose of
ctassification of its assets and tiabitities as current and non-current.

Significant Accounting Policies
7.1 Property, plant and equipment

Property, ptant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation. HistoricaI cost includes expenditure that is directty
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included
in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as

appropriate, onty when it is probabte that future economic benefits
associated with the item wit[ ftow to the company and the cost of the item
can be measured retiabty.

Depreciation is catcutated on the straight line method to write off the cost
of assets, to their residual values over their estimated useful life as fottows:

Useful Life
Leasehotd lmprovement 20 years
Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings 2 to 6 years
Office Equipments 2 to 4 years
Ptant & Machinery 5 to 20 years
Motor Vehicles 5 years

7
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

The asset's residual vatues and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate, at each end of reporting period. Where the carrying amount of
an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediatety to its recoverabte amount. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, ptant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are inctuded in the statement of profit or [oss.

7.2 Financial lnstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of
one entity and a financiat tiabitity or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Classification
The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, fair vatue through other comprehensive income or fair value through
profit or loss, on the basis of its business model for managing the financia[
assets and the contractual cash ftows characteristics of the financial asset.

lnitial recognition and measurement
A[[ financia[ assets are recognised initiatty at fair value plus, in the case of
financiat assets not recorded at fair value through profit or [oss, transaction
costs that are attributabte to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financiat assets are ctassified
in two broad categories:
. Financial assets at fair vatue (FVTPL /FVTOCI)
o Financial assets at amortised cost
When assets are measured at fair vatue, gains and losses are either
recognised in the statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair vatue through profit
or toss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair
vatue through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for
impairment, if any)
Financiat assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a

business model, whose objective is to hotd assets for coltecting contractual
cash flows and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solety payments of principat and interest. Such financial
assets are subsequentty measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (ElR) method less impairment, if any. The tosses arising from
impairment are recognised in the Statement of profit and [oss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive
lncome ("FVTOC|")
Financiat assets under this category are measured initiatty as wetl as at each
reporting date at fair vatue, when asset is hetd within a business modet,
whose objective is to hotd assets for both cottecting contractual cash flows
and setting financiat assets.
other comprehensive income.

M. NO.
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
("FWPL"):
Financiat assets under this category are measured initiatty as wett as at each
reporting date at fair vatue with att changes recognised in profit or [oss.

lnvestment in Equity lnstruments
Equity instruments which are hetd for trading are ctassified as at FVTPL. A[[
other equity instruments are ctassified as FVTOCI. Fair vatue changes on the
instrument, exc[uding dividends, are recognised in the other comprehensive
income. There is no recycting of the amounts from other comprehensive
income to profit or toss.

lnvestment in Debt lnstruments
A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVOCI, is ctassified as at FVTPL. Debt instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair vatue with all
changes recognised in the Statement of profit and [oss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets
A financiat asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash
ftows from the asset have expired or the Group has transferred its rights to
receive cash ftows from the asset.

lmpairment of Financial Assets
ln accordance with lnd - AS 109, the Group appties expected credit loss
(ECL) modet for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
financial assets that are debt instruments and trade receivabtes.

Financial Liabilities
Classification
The Group ctassifies att financial liabitities as subsequentty measured at
amortised cost or FVTPL.

lnitial recognition and measurement
Att financiat tiabitities are recognised initiatty at fair vatue and, in the case
of loans, borrowings and payables, net of directty attributabte transaction
costs.

Financial tiabitities inctude trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
inctuding bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
Financial tiabitities at fair value through profit or loss inctude financial
tiabitities held for trading and financiat tiabitities designated upon initiaI
recognition as at fair vatue through profit or loss. lnterest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequentty measured at amortised cost using the Effective
lnterest Rate (ElR) method. Gains and [osses are recognised in profit or loss
when the tiabitities are derecognised as wett as through EIR amortisation

o

t.No.
107574



7.3 lnventories
Raw materiats and packing materials are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable vatue, cost of which includes duties and taxes. Cost of imported
raw materiats and packing materiats tying in bonded warehouse inc[udes
customs duty. Finished products including traded goods and work-in-progress
are valued at lower of cost and net reatisabte value. Cost is arrived at on
moving weighted average basis.

The cost of lnventories have been computed to inctude atl cost of purchases,
cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production overheads based
on normal capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present condition.

Net reatisabte vatue is the estimated setting price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of comptetion and selting expenses.

Slow and non-moving material, obsolesces, defective inventory are futly
provided for and valued at net reatisable vatue.

Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the
date of batance sheet. Materia[s and other items hetd for use in production
of inventories are not written down, if the finished products in which they
witl be used are expected to be sold at or above cost.

7.4 Cash And Cash Equivalent
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank
including fixed deposit/highty tiquid investments with originaI maturity
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

process. Amortised cost is catcutated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
ElR. The EIR amortisation is inctuded as finance costs in the statement of
profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
A financial tiabitity is derecognised when the obtigation under the liabitity is
discharged or cance[led or expires. When an existing financial tiabitity is
replaced by another from the same tender on substantiatty different terms,
or the terms of an existing tiabitity are substantiatty modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the originat
tiabitity and the recognition of a new tiabitity. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Derivative Financial lnstrument
The Group uses derivative financiat instruments, such as forward currency
contracts to mitigate its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial
instruments are initialty recognised at fair vatue on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequentty re-measured at fair
vatue. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is
positive and as financiat tiabitities when the fair value is negative.



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
vatue.

7,5 Cash Flow Statements
Cash ftows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrats or accruats of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash ftows. The cash ftow from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Group are segregated.

7.6 Foreign Currency Transactions
Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normatty
recorded at the exchange rate prevaiting on the date of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-
measured at the exchange rate prevailing on the batance sheet date. Non-
monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on
setttement or on restatement is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

7.7 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits witl ftow to the Group and the revenue can be retiabty measured,
regardtess of when the payment is being made.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Amount disclosed as revenue are inctusive of excise duty,
exctuding Goods and Service Tax (GST), sates tax or vatue added taxes or
service taxes or duties cotlected on behatf of the government, and net of
returns, trade discount/ attowances, rebates, and amounts collected on
behatf of third parties.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised, when all significant risks and
rewards are transferred to the buyer, as per the terms of contracts and no
significant uncertainty exists regarding amount of the consideration that witt
be derived from the sale of goods.

Dividend income is recognised when right to receive dividend is estabtished.
lnterest income is recognised on time proportion basis. lnsurance and other
claims are recognised as a revenue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis.

7.E Employee Benefits
Att employee benefits payabte wholty within twelve months rendering
service are classified as short term emptoyee benefits. Benefits such as
salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives

a
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

etc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognised during the
period in which the emptoyee renders retated service.

(i) Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution ptans are recognised as expense when
employees have rendered services entitting them to such benefits.

The Group pays Social Security Cost as per tocal regulations. The Group has
no further payment obtigations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the
contributions are recognized as emptoyee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is availabte.

For employees who are not covered by a pension ptan, the net present value
of severance attowances payabte under the Employment Rights Act 2008 is
provided for. The obtigations arising under this item are not funded.

(ii) Share-based compensation
The Group has no share based compensation plan.

7.9 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributabte to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
the asset. Att other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs.

7.'t0 Lease
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is
based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception date, whether
futfitment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right
is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Assets acquired on teases where a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by lessor are ctassified as operating
leases. Leases rentals are charged to the statement of profit and loss on
straight [ine basis.

Finance leases that transfer substantiatly att of the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the
commencement of the lease at the fair vatue of the leased property or, if
lower, at the present vatue of the minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and a reduction in the
tease tiabitity so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

balance of the tiabitity. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in
the statement of profit and [oss.

A teased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if
there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the
end of the leased term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the leased term.

7.11 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit
attributabte to the equity hotders of the company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Dituted earnings per
equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributabte to the
equity hotders of the company by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and atso the
weighted average number of equity shares that coutd have been issued upon
conversion of att ditutive potential equity shares. The ditutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivabte had the equity shares
been actuatly issued at fair vatue. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, untess issued at a later
date" Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independentty for
each period presented.

7.1 2 lncome Taxes
lncome tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

lncome tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and
toss except to the extent that it retates to items recognized directty in
equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. The
current income tax charge is based on taxable income for the year
catcutated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantivety enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax is provided in futt, using the tiabitity method, on

temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and tiabitities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, if the
deferred income tax arises from initiat recognition of an asset or tiabitity in
a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxabte profit or toss, it is not
accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have

been enacted or substantivety enacted by the end of reporting period and

are expected to appty in the period when the retated deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax tiabitity is settted. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabte that future taxabte
profit witt be avaitabte against which deductible temporary differences can
be utitised.
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

7.13 Dividends to Shareholders
Annual dividend distribution to the sharehotders is recognised as a liabitity
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any
interim dividend paid is recognised on approvat by Board of Directors.
Dividend payabte is recognised directty in equity.

7. 14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments
General
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obtigation (tegat or
constructive) as a result of past event and it is probabte that an outflow of
resources witt be required to settte the obtigation, in respect of which a
retiable estimate can be made.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are
not discounted to its present vatue and are determined based on best
estimate required to settte the obtigation at the batance sheet date" These
are reviewed at each batance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.

lf there is any expectation that some or alt of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtualty certain
reimbursement.

lf the effect of the time value of money is materiat, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risk specific to the tiabitity. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost"

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
.a present obtigation arising from past events, when it is not probab[e that

an outftow of resources witl be required to settte the obtigation;
.a present obtigation arising from past events, when no re[iab[e estimates is

possibte;
.a possibte obligation arising from past events, untess the probabitity of
outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent tiabitities are not recognised in the financial statements.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disctosed in the financiat
statements.

Commitments inctude the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued
to parties for completion of assets and Non-cancettabte operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabitities, contingent assets and commitments are

o
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

Asset Retirement Obligation
Asset retirement obtigations (ARO) are provided for those operating tease
arrangements where the Company has a binding obtigation at the end of the
lease period to restore the leased premises in a condition simitar to
inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present vatue of expected costs
to settte the obtigation using discounted cash ftows and are recognised as
part of the cost of that particular asset. The cash ftows are discounted at a
current pre-tax rate that reftects the risks specific to the decommissioning
tiabitity. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning
are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated
future costs or in the discount rate apptied are added to or deducted from
the cost of the asset.

7 .15 F air value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value
at each batance sheet date in accordance with lnd AS 113.

Financials Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for the following material items in the statement of financial position:
o Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value received from

Bank.
.Mutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Vatue (NAV).
. Employee Stock Option Ptan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuariat Vatuation

Report.

Fair vatue is the price that woutd be received to setl an asset or settte a
tiabitity in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a tiabitity is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or tiabitity,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a

market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by setting it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are avaitabte to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

Al[ assets and liabitities for which fair vatue is measured or disctosed in the
financiaI statements are categorised within the fair vatue hierarchy,
described as fottows, based on the towest tevel input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
identicaI assets or tiabitities.

. Level 2 - Vatuation techniques for which the lowest tevel
significant to the fair value measurement is directty
observabte.

. Level 3 - Vatuation techniques for which the lowest [eve[
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

markets for

input that is
or indirectty

input that is

For assets and tiabitities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair vatue measurement as a
whote) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined
ctasses of assets and tiabitities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or tiabitity and the [eve[ of the fair value hierarchy as
exptained above.

7.1 6 Recent accounting pronouncements
Standards issued but not yet effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs in March 2018 has re-notified lnd AS 115,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Earlier, this Standard was omitted
and two other standards, lnd AS 11, Construction Contracts and lnd AS 18,
Revenue had been notified in its ptace. Now, after re-notification of lnd AS

1'15, lnd AS 11 and lnd AS 18 would be redundant. lnd AS 115 deals with
recognition of revenue arising from sate of goods, rendering of services,
interest, royalties and construction contracts. lt is a converged form of IFRS

15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. lnd A5 115 shatt be apptied
from financial years beginning on or after 1st Aprit, 2018.

These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Group.

7.1 7 Criticat accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disctosure of
contingent liabitities, at the end of the reporting period. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates coutd resutt in outcomes
that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or
liabitities in future periods.

(a) Arrangement containing lease
At the inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether the
arrangement is or contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of
an arrangement that contains a lease, the Group separates payments and
other consideration required by the arrangement into those for the [ease
and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair vatues.

M. NO.
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Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of
operating leases.

(b) Multiple element contracts with vendors
The Group has entered into multipte element contracts with vendors for
supply of goods and rendering of services. The consideration paid is/may be
determined independent of the value of suppties received and services
avaited. Accordingly, the suppties and services are accounted for based on
their retative fair vatues to the overall consideration. The suppties with
finite tife under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting
poticies) have been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment and/or
as lntangibte assets, since the Group has economic ownership in these
assets. The Group betieves that the current treatment represents the
substance of the arrangement.

(c) Determination of functional currency
Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency (the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
and items included in the financiat statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. lnd AS 21, "The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates" prescribes the factors to be considered for the purpose of
determination of functional currency. Management uses its judgement to
determine the functional currency that most faithfutty represents the
economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions.

(d) Property, Plant and equipment
Determination of the estimated useful tife of tangible assets and the
assessment as to which components of the cost may be capitatized. Useful
tife of tangibte assets is based on the tife of useful lives/rates prescribed by
the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumptions atso need to be made,
when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitatised and which
components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.

(f) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations
The obtigation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the
basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuariat assumptions inctude discount
rate, trends in satary escatation and vested future benefits and tife
expectancy. The discount rate is determined with reference to market
yietds at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The
period to maturity of the undertying bonds correspond to the probabte

lr. No.
107571

o
*

maturity of the post-emptoyment benefit obligations.

(e) lntangible Assets
lnternal technicaI or user team assess the remaining usefut lives of
lntangibte assets. Management betieves that assigned usefut lives are
reasonabte.



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

(g) Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
Deferred tax asset is recognised for atl the deductibte temporary differences
to the extent that it is probabte that taxabte profit wi[[ be available against
which the deductibte temporary difference can be utitised. The
management assumes that taxable profits witl be available white recognising
deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calcutation of provision for
income taxes and deferred tax assets and tiabitities. The Company reviews
at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The
factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which coutd tead
to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financiat
statements.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of comptex tax
regulations and the amount and timing of future taxabte income. Given the
wide range of international business relationships and the long-term nature
and comptexity of existing contractuaI agreements, differences arising
between the actual resutts and the assumptions made, or future changes to
such assumptions, coutd necessitate future adjustments to tax income and
expense atready recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on
reasonabte estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax
authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. The amount of
such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxabte
entity and the responsibte tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevaiting
in the respective country.

(h) Recognition and measurement of other provisions
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the
assessment of the probabitity of an outftow of resources, and on past
experience and circumstances known at the batance sheet date. The actual
outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the figure
inctuded in other provisions.

(i) Contingencies
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outftow of
resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim / litigations against the
Group as it is not possibte to predict the outcome of pending matters with
accuracy.

M NO.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for a[[ unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxabte profit witl. be avaitable against which the
[osses can be utitised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the tikety timing and the [eve[ of future taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments.



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

(j) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal
value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverabte
amounts, lndividuat trade receivabtes are written off when management
seems them not cottectibte. lmpairment is made on the expected credit
losses, which are the present vatue of the cash shortfatl over the expected
tife of the financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption
about risk of defautt and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these
assumption and setecting the inputs to the impairment calculation are based
on past history, existing market condition as wetl as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(k) lnsurance claims
lnsurance claims are recognised when the Group have reasonabte certainty
of recovery.

(l) lmpairment reviews
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating
unit ('CGU') exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the
higher of its fair vatue less costs to sell and its vatue in use. The vatue in use
catculation is based on a discounted cash flow modet. ln calcutating the
value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in respect of
highly uncertain matters, including management's expectations of growth in
EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to
reflect the risks involved.
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AJanta Ph.rrna (llaurltius) Limited
Consolidated Ealance Sheet as at 31 march 2018

31-itar-18 3'l -i{ar- 17
Rs. in LacaNote No Rr. ln Laci

(1)
Assets
Non-Current A5seG

(a)
(b)

Property, Plant and Equipment 611.31 18.,5
FinanciaLAssets

(i) Non-current lnvesaments 5

(i i) Other Non-current Financiailssets 6 17.85

1.93(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 7
Total Non-Current Asgets 1,390.73 735.74

Current fusets
(a) lnventorias 8 1,958.91
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivabtes

I

6,180.46 2,816,51

915.05
2,319.22

(ji) Cash and cash equivatents 10 -,948.3t
1,145.n 

'
(c) t'l

Total Current Asrets 11,94?.65 8,049.68
T Assett 13,133.38 8,

. Equity

. (a) EqrJity Share Capital
T

12 943.81 809.50
7:7u7eb) Other Equity +

13 11,N7.63
Total Equity 11,951.44 8,274.09

t2)

Llebilitieg
cur;entllablfitie; l(a) Other current tiabilitie5 14 r,381.94 51 1.33

Total Current Llabilitler 'r,381.94 511.13
Total Equlty a es 8, E5.42

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

' 
ln iirmiof our report att
For G. R. l,todi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

"lh"d
For and on behalf of Eoard of Directors

lCAl FRN : 1

oJ Ajanta Ph.rma (I,{auritius) Limited

lrLj f! I

I Modi Yogesh I't. Agrawal
i oirecG -Partner

fiu;b.1,24 201E
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AJanta (l'tauritius) Limited
Consolideted Statement Profit nd Loss for yeaa ended l 1 March 1 8

Note No

31-r'tar- 1E

iirn r-""t
31-Mar-17
Rs. in Lacs

lncome:
Revenue from
Ottrer lncome

operations 15
1

) 29,447.12| 171.7a
20,797.71

't,491 6
Total lncome 29,A19.a7 20,799.20

Expenses:
Cost of Materiats Consumed
Purchase oi Stoclcln-Trade
Changes in inventorjes of Finished
Emptoyee Eenefiti Expenses
Finance Costs

Goods/Wo -ln.Progresi/Stock-in-Trade

17lrl
Ll? l

20

454.49

6,198.05
1,139.07

50r.48

oeprecjatjon and Amortjsation Expense
Other Expenses I -

21

22

112.80 60.81

8,464.2610,789.51
Total Expeniet 21 767.2E 1 6,81 8. 16

Profit Before Tax
lax Lxpense:

Current Tax
Oeffera Tax

6,052.59 3,981.03

644.81 90.58
(3. e3 )

t or Year 7,407.78 4

Other Comprehensive lncome / (Loss)
Items that will be reclasrified subsequently to profit or loss: -tI
Exchange differences on transtation of foreign operations 480.11 (93.56)
lncome tax retatin to items that witl be reclassified to or Loss

Net other Comprehensive lncome / (Loss) to be reclasslfled uently to profit or loss Q3. s5)
Other Comprehentive lncome / (Loss) for the , net of tax (93.56
Total m e (Losi) 88 3,800.83

Earnint Per Equjty Share (8asia& Diluted) (Face Vaiue MURIOO/-) 24 ' t,206.89 634.48

See accompanylng notes forminq part of the consotidated tinanctat statements

ln terms of our report attached
For G. R. Modi & Co.

Chartered Accountants
__- Ir..rn4!!ib.!E

ofAj.nt Ph.nDE-I
-'-#1A-PP_ I t_

of Eoard of Directors
(ilauritius) Limited

(ICAI FRN : 11261

I

Swapnll l{odi
Partner
Itumbai, 24 April, 201E

Yogesh 14, Airawal
Director

the

285.31
9,574.48

437.12

56&06

480.11
480.11

M. NO.
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Ajanta Pharma (},{auritiu s) Lim
Statement of Consolidated Caihflows for the ye.r ended 31 March 2018 ( ? ln Lacs)

31 l arch 201731 March 201E

112.80

4,779.71

(3J41.95)
(0.2e)

c.

Cash Flow from Operating Activltier
Prolit before Tax
Adjustment for :

Depreciation and Amortisation b(pense
tlnance Losts
Exchange Fluctuation

f-r

=

l 3,981.03

6031

(93.56)

3,94E.28

5,492.09
(86.64)

5,405.45

Oper.ting Carhflows before Working Capital Changei
Changes in Workrng Capitat :

Decrease (lncrease) in Trade and other Receivables

Decrease (lncrease) in Other Non Current A55ets

. Decrease llncrease) in Other Cur;ent Assets

Decrease I lncrease) in lnventories
lncrease (Decrea5e) in Other Current Liabitities

Cash Generated from Op€rations
Net lncome tax paid

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities

Carh Flow from lnvesting Actlvitiei
Capitat Expenditure on Property, Plani and Equipment
Purchase of non-current lnvestments

Net Cash used ln lnvestlng Activitlet

Cash Flow from Financing Activitiei
Proceeds (Repaymtnt) of Current Borio*ings
Dividend %id

1,171.05
29i23

---s7oJ1

(58!2Z)
430.42

41.4
1,2]'6i3

420.23
7,770.34

1644.811

B

tntludiru Capital Advances

7,125.54

('r0.16)
(7s7.r5)

1767.51t

\4,344.74)
(4,344.741

44. )

(5.3e)

11 ,1 ].49)
(1,653.79)

Net Carh used in Financing Activitlet

Net lncrease / (Oecrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,O13.2 8

(4,E32.2E)

567.78

Cash and Cash Equivatents as at the Beginning of the Year

Cash and Cash uivatents as at the End of the Year

Figures in brackets indicates outftow.
Note :

1. The above Cash Ftow Statement has been prepared under 'lndirect Method' as set out in Accounting Standard 7 (lnd AS ' 7) "Statement of Cash FtoW'.

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are shotrt-term batances (with an original maturity ol three

months or tess from the date of acqulsition).

see accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
ln termi of our report attached
For G- R. ,'{odi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of Soard of Directors of
Ajanta Pharma (rrlaurltlus) Limited

(lCAl FRN : 1

<----)

Partner
Mumbal, 24 Aprll, 2018

Yogelh ,{. Agraw.l
Director

935.05
7,94a,t3

167.27
9 3 5.05

I

T-lr--T
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i
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l -614.rr1
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A. Equity Share Capital

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 *tarch 2018

Aut on

B. Other Equity

a in Lacs
Changes in equity share
capital during the year

Balance as at 1 April
2017

1 ,494.30
941.81
943.81

Balance as at 31 March
2018

lssued:
Subscribed & Paid up:

1 ,494.30
941.81
943.81

Capital
Redemption

Reserve

Securities
Premium
Account

Share Based

Payment
ReserYe

Foreign
Currency

Translation
ReserYe

Other items of
other

comprehensiye
income

Total Non-
Controlling
lnterests

Particulars Total Equity

As at 1 April 2016
Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income

7,317.45
3,894.39

7,489.42

Ii r,aea.:e I

93.56 93.5693.56

(171..97].

Transfer to General reserve
Dividend Paid

At 31 l arch 2Ol7

stve lncome (93.56)com

(3,653.79)
7 489.42 7 464.49 7 464,49265.54

(3,653.79)

3,894.39

(3,5s3.79)
240.60

7 ,407.7A
480.11

7,407.74
480.11

7,407.78
Other comprehensive income 480.11

ro f

com
Dividend Paid

480.11o ncome

4 344.7 44 344.74 4 !44.7 4

7,407.78 7,887.88

At 31 itarch 2018 3 007.63214.57303.64 11 11 oo7.63

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Ajanta Pharma (l,lauritius) Limited

/1
)

I rztP r\

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

I'tumbai, 24 April, 2018

(lCAl FRN : 112

f-l^r'
Yogesh i . Agrawal
Director

Swapnil odi
Partner

ln terms of our report attached
For G. R. odi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

I I =

General
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

7,317.45
3,894.39

3,800.83

1

-r-t 3,800.83

I-
----+ I 7,887.88

7 ,449.42

M. NO,
1A7574



Ajanta Pharma lliauritius) Limited
Notes to the Conaolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 lilarch 2018

+ I I
4 Property, Plant and Equipment
4.i Current Year

T

T
I (l Lacs)

Gross Block (Cost or oeemed cost) Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation Net Etocr(

Particulars
As at

01.04.20r7
Additions Disposals Exchange

Difference
As at

31.03.201E

As at
01.04.2017

For the
Year

DisposaLs Exchange
Drfference

tuat
31.03.2018

tuat
31.01.2018

Property, Plant and Equipment
Leasehotd lmprovement
Ptant & Machinery
Furniture & fixture
Office Equipment
Vehictes

1 15.66
1,474.58

117.65

31t. 1s

115.50

9.51

0.65

115.66
1,484.09

117.65

319.80
115.50

73.38
917.96
80.24

290.54
66.47

6.06
17.76
6.17

16.76

6.05

79.44

995.72

86.41
307.10

72.52

36.22
488.3E

31.24
12:49
4?.98

Tot.l Property, Plant and Equipment 2,'t42.54 10.16 2,152.70 1,424.59 I 12.80 1,54'1.39 5't 1.31

l +
+ +

+

1
t

4.2 I Previous Year I I r l I
Gross Block (Cost or Deemed cost) Accumutated Depreciation/Amonisation NET BLOCK

Particula15
As at

0r.04.2016
Additions Disp05at5 Exchange

Difference
As at

r1.0t2047
As at

01.04.2016
For the

Year
Disposats Exchange

Drfference
As at

31.01.2017
As at

31.03.2017
Property, Plant and Equipment
Leasehold lmprovement
Ptant & Machinery
Furniture & fixture
Offjce Equipment
Vehictes

119.13
1,51'0,

97.93
32E.00
118.97

3.68
72.90

0.71

3.47
44.17

3.19
9.56
3 46

115.66
1,474.58

117.65

319. 15

115.50

73.29
915.31

75.t5
289.44
55.84

2.26
29.73
6.70
9.68

12.44

2.17
27.W
2.31
8.57

11,E

73.3E
917.96

80.24

290.54
66.47

42.28

556.63
37.40

2E.60
49.03

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 2,179.O9 2.7,30 63.8 5 2,142.54 't ,409.72 60.81 41-94 1 ,428.59 713.95

M. No.
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aJ.nt. Ph.rm. (tll.urltru, Limltd
. iot$ ro th. Co.iolid.t.d tin.nci.l St.tem.ntt for th. ye.r ended 3 I +-

nr. tn t rcr1-

5

rnvesiment at ratr vatue ttrrou8h Profitor Loli (F!,TPU

i ln ri&lrd FunA (Quotcd)

r61 52+erm Fu.d XllSegregated Portfolio

orenland Global Fund sub Fund A Clarr I RPS - 5€ri6 E 65,1E0 ,150 295.8,t

6 Other Noh'Curr.nt Fln.ncial Ar3.tt 1-(UBft ured. Corid€red Good)
22.07 17.85

7 (N.t)

rlgt!!r4rq4!4l I l.9l

!l
+

Raw r,ratenlls

----------------

106-2+ 152.9a
t9.ltr s8.86
28.0r 86.61

108.29 160.91

Stocr-in.tra+

-i

1,11.68 ,{67 58

+- --------.1-I Tr.de R*.iY.bl6

23165

__j-_- ffiI L liif ,.,
B.l.nce with B..k . ln Curr$t Ac(ounts 2,946 S 932 84

t1 +
11?.87 . I,E76.95
a7at6 4!d.27t ad%.cel to R€lat€d Parti6 (APUI A aPL)

advanc6 to Employees

157.14

M. NO.
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Ajanta Ph.rlni (r .urlt
. Not6loth. C63oltd.t.d Ftn.nct.t Sritemcnt3 fo. rh. ycar.nd.d-r ,,{.rch 2018

_Lil 1

T T-- E- i^k-
1 LOrdin.ry 5harei ot MUR 100 each 10,00,000 1,a94.10 1O,OO,0OO 1,,r94.10

l$u.d, Subkrlbcd A P.ld ut: - f
Ordinary Shar6 orMUR 100 each lully paid tp 6j3je1 9.13.81 1,ri,79r i 609.60

) Rftdclli.tio of numbcr of 3lt.r6 @trt.ndhg.t th. .nd.t th..nd of th€
l13t l,{.r.h 2017

No. of sh.;!r Rr. La.rNo. of Shar8 nr. Ucr
6,11,791 6,11,791 E09.60

Add : Number or shares aUotted ar lulty paid-up during
Lert: Number ol ihares borght back durlng the year
NumD€r-t lha.fi oul,I.nding ai at the end ot the year

1

(b) Rlght', p.erer.n.n .nd .6trl.ti6. .tt.chcd to rh.r6 L-The (ompaiy h3r ilrued loly qne.q! 9l! oldingry sharei wth vorins righti htri4 . par \ra[e of MUR10{ p€-r ,h.r;.
Durlng the year ended ll r&.th2018, amouit per shar€ of dtvidend re(ogn'ied as drstnUr:t,oru to equrty O-rerrotoirs
h I hetvent o, lqurdatlon or lhe company, the hou.rs;tEurty irrares *ttt b€ entrued to.ecetve remainhs asrets ot
of equity thares held by rhareholdeE,

MUR 120.71 per equity share
Th€ dhtnbutio. will b€ in proportion to rhe numb€rs

l

I l.r,{ar- r 8

% Hol
6,1 100.00 6,11,791

(d) 5ha.6 rffi.d fd l$uc und.r optidt Nrl flt Nil

13 , oTltER EQUrY
C€n.r.l R.!frc

-t

Batance at the b€ginning ol the ye.r
Add : lEndered from statemeot of Protit 6 + 7,49.12 7,489_42

7,149.12 7,189.12

(265.54)Erchang. Fluctu.tl6 R4ry.
l 211.57

Surplur ln the Stat.m.nt of Proflt and L6e --- - - t-- l

!€giTin9 I 2a0.60
- 7,407i8- 3,E94.19

4,34.74 3,651.79
303. 60

Eq,

itAOD

lvr No.
107571

_l
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AJ.nt. Pharm. {t aurit
Notn to th. Conioltdrt.d Fln.n.i.l Stltmmtr lor th. y..r.nd.d 3i lt.rch 201!

I
R3. ln L&r

5|.JlI t 1,161.94
11,

15 R.v.nu.lrom Ops.tlont
5!le ot Produ.t3

finished Gooda
Stftk-in-Trade

r
L 2,34'!!:

27,0E2.7'l

3,520.79
1t,i76.97

l t
q.Lanse 4ff9!€$.1tre!)

0.47

17 co3t ol Mttsl.l Contumed
Raw lraterial Cdtumed 181.05 3t7.26

l1t.7t102.26

9,574.1E 6,r98.0t

19 ch.n86 l. lnventorl.! ot Finlrh.d iio6de;wort:ln-trogr.li and Stoik-G-li.de
hr.ntori6.t th.od of th. ydr:

2E.01

108 29
88 61

140.91

1 ,467 5EItocr.h.trad. 141.68

1,279.98 1,?17 10

88.61
160.91

1,467.58

52.10
E{.60

,,109.i5t;r-in-trade
(B) 't,711.10 2.E5617

Tot.l chanBB ln lny6tori6 of Fi.lrh.d C-o&, wort- -prqr-r rnJrc<r-tn.rr-c : IIL l
60 60

52.61

l?1.91

t26.51)
(4.31)

r,2,11.89

20 EDpolye B€ncfit Expdi6
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Notes
23.

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Capital Management
Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to sustain future devetopment of the business.
Management monitors the return on capitat, as well as the [eve[ of dividends to equity
sharehotders. The board of directors seeks to maintain a batance between the higher
returns that might be possible with higher tevels of borrowing and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capita[ position. Group's target is to achieve a
return on capital above 30%; in 7017 -18 the return was 67% and in 201 6- 17 the return
was 48%.

Group monitors capital using a ratio of'adjusted net debt'to'adjusted equity'. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total tiabitities, comprising interest-
bearing loans and borrowings and obtigations under finance leases, less cash and cash
equivatents and short term investments. Adjusted equity comprises a[[ components
of equity.

Group's poticy is to keep the ratio beLow 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity
ratio at 31 March 2018 was as fo[[ows. { in Lacs

Particulars 31 March
2018

Deb Debt + Current Liabitities) 1,381 .94 51 1 .33
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 2,948.33 935.05
Net Debt A (1,566.39) (423.72)
E ut B 1',\,951 .44 8,274.09
Net Debt to E uit ratio A/B

24. Earnings Per share (EPS):
The numerator and denominator used to catcutate Basic and Dituted Earnings Per
Share:

25. Employee Benefits

()

Particulars 31 March
2018

31 March
2017

Basic and Diluted Earni Per Share:
Profit attributabte to Equity sharehotders-
for Basic EPS { in Lacs

A 7,407.78 3,894.39

Add: Dilutive effect on ofit { in Lacs B Nit Nit
it attributabte to Equity sharehotdersProf

{ in Lacs)for com tin
C=A-B 7,407.78 3,894.39

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
outstandin

D 6,13,791 6,13,791

DidAd tu ee f,fect oof t o on tsu ta dn np o

uN m b re Eof u t S ah res
E Nit Nit

Weighted Average N
for Dituted EPS

r of Equity Sharesumbe F=D+E 6,13,791 6,13,791

Face Vatue uitr Share MUR 100 100
Basic Earnin Per Share AtD 1,206.89 634.48Diluted Earnin Per Shares c/F 1,206.89 634.48

M. NO.
107571

D
As required by rnd AS 19 'Emptoyee Benefits', the Group offers its emptoyees sociatSecurity cost and severance Attowance. ounnj tl,e year, tne crouf tr-ai'ri.ogniruathe fotlowing amounts in the account:

31 March
2017

Dituted EPS

- for Basic EPS



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the r ended 31 March 2018

26.

Fair value measurements

Fair Value Hierarch

a in Lacs

measured using
he mutual fundsLevet 1 - The hierarchy in tevel 1 inctudes financial instruments

Iioiea orlc"s. This inctudes mutual funds that have quoted price' T

are vatued using the ctosing NAV'

*

31 March 2017
{ in Lacs

31 March 2018
{ in Lacs

Particulars

10.6711.27CostSociaI Securit
3.135.06Severance Attowance

13.8016.33Total

31 March 2018 31 March 201 7

Financial lnstruments bY category ryTPL Amortised
Cost

FVTPL Amortised
Cost

Financial Assets
lnvestment in Mutual Funds 757.35

Trade Receivabtes 6,180.46 2,836.51

Other Non-Current FinanciaI Assets 72.07 17.85

Cash and cash uivatents 2,948.33 9 3 5.05

Total Financial Assets 757,35 9,150.86 3,7 89 .41

Financial Liabilities
Other Current Financial Liabitities 1,381 .94 511.33

Total Financial Liabilities 1,381 .94 51 1 .33

31 March 201731 March 2018
LevelLevelFinancial assets and liabilities measured

at fair value
tItI

iair value measurementNon recurrin
757.35lnvestment 'in Mutua tFunds

2,836. 5'l6,180.46Trade Receivabtes
17 .8522.07Ottrer Non'Current Finan ciaI Assets

9 3 5.057,948.33uivatentsCash and cash
3,789.419,150.86757 ,35Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabi lities 511.331 ,381 .94Li ba tl til escan al ttn IF neh cI reurot 511.331,381 .94
Total Financial Liabilities

M. NO,
10757 4

*

For emptoyees who are not covered by a pension ptan, the net present vatue of

severance altowances payabte is provided for under the Emptoyment Rights Act. lt
has been assumed that ihe rate of future satary increases witt be equat to the

discount rate.

Financial lnstrument - fair values and risk management

? in Lacs

,;

t- ]

I
Financial assets

Levet2-Thefairvatueoffinanciatinstrumentsthatarenottradedinanactive
market (tike forward .o.ir..iri li determined. using valuation techniques which

maximise the use of ouse*aii" nl.rt 
"t 

a.t. and re.ty as tittte as possibte on entity-

soecific estimates. rt att siin-iiicint inputs required to fair vatue as instrument are

observabte, the instrument is inctuded ln tevet /'



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Level 3 - lf one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observabte market
data, the instrument is included in [eve[ 3. This is the case for untisted equity
securities, etc. inctuded in tevel 3.

A. Financial risk management
Group has exposure to foltowing risks arising from financiat instruments:

. credit risk
o liquidity risk
. market risk

i. Risk management framework
Group's board of directors has overall responsibitity for the establishment and
oversight of the Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible
for devetoping and monitoring the Company's risk management poticies, under the
guidance of Audit Committee.

Group's risk management poticies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by it, to set appropriate risk limits and controts and to monitor risks and
adherence to timits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regutarty
to reftect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. Group, through
its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciptined and constructive control
environment in which atl emptoyees understand their rotes and obligations.

Group's Audit committee oversees how management monitors comptiance with the
Group's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The audit
committee is assisted in its oversight role by interna[ audit. lnternat audit undertakes
both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controts and procedures, the
resutts of which are reported to the audit committee.

ii. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party witl not meet its obtigations under a
financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financiat toss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarity trade receivabtes).

Summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstand
various customers is as foltows:

ing from
? in Lacs

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 201 7
Not ast due but im ired
Not st due not im aired
Past due not im aired 6,180.46 2,836.51
-'t-180 da 5,925.58 2,669.89- 181-365 da
- more than 365 da 754.88 166.62
Past due im ired
- 1-180 da s
- 181-365 da s

a) Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group'sstabtished poticy, procedures and controI retating to customer credit riska

OD

t4. NO.
107571 anagement. Trade receivabtes, which are non-interest bear.ing, are mainly from

- more



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

stockists, distributors and customers. Except for, one large ctient, the Group has no

significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of

cJunterparties and customers. The Group has poticies in place to ensure that sates

of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for

major ctients. ln aidition, a targe number of minor receivables are grouPed into

homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectivety. The calculation is
basedln historicai data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date

is the carrying vatue of each class of financiat assets. The group does not hotd

cottateral a! security. The group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to
trade receivabtes ai [ow, is its customers are located in several jurisdictions and

operate in targety independent markets.

b) Financial instruments
Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing onty in liquid debt securities

issued by mutual funds having a credit ranking of atleast 3 and above from CRISIL or
equivalent rating agency. company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking
pubtished external credit ranking. Based on its on-going assessment of counterParty

risk, the Company adjusts its exposure to various counterparties.

iii. LiquiditY risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future

cash ani coltaterat obtigations without incurring unacceptabte tosses. The Group's

objective is to, at att timls maintain optimum levets of tiquidity to meet its cash and

co[taterat requirements. The Group closely monitors its tiquidity position and deploys

a robust cash management system. lt maintains adequate sources of financing

inctuding bitaterat toans, debt and overdraft from banks at an oPtimised cost.

working capital requirements are adequatety addressed by internatly generated

funds. irade receivabtes are kept within manageabte tevels'

iv. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates,

interest rates and equity pricei - wilt affect the Group's income or the vatue of its

hotd1ngs of financiat initruments. The objective of market risk management is to

,unugi and controt market risk exposuies within acceptabte parameters, white

optimlsing the return. Financiat instruments affected by market risk inctude loans

iia Uorrol*ings, defoiits, investments, and derivative financiaI instruments' Group's

.itiriti", exp6ie it'to a variety of financiat risks, inctuding the effects of changes in

foreign curren.y 
"r.ning" 

ratls and interest rates. Alt transactions are carried out

*itni"n tf," guidetines seiby the risk management committee'

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the

;;fii;; "i 
finin.i.t inrtiun.'er,'ts tn'toreign currencjes are a[[ constant. The anatvsis

excludes the impact ot ,o,","nti in mirket variabtes on the carrying value of

postemptoyment benefit "bt;;;iil;, fro'lstnt anaon the non-financiat assets and

iiabitities. The sensitivity J t'he reterint income statement item is the effect of the

assumed changes in tn" ,"rp".tlr"'*uix"t risks. This is based on the financial assets

ffi;i;;;;ifi.Lititl"t hetias of 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017'

*

OD, a) Currency risk , !- rL^ ^-+^^r +hir rhara is a mismatch between
The Group is exPosed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch betu

the currencies in which "i"t" 
p'itnttes and borrowings are 6snerni66tgd' The



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

currencies in which these transactions are primarity denominated are US Doltars, Euro
and Mauritian Rupee.

The Group does not have any poticy to hedge against foreign currency exposure. ln
resPect of other monetary assets and tiabitities denominated in foreign currencies,
the Group's policy is to ensure that its net exposure is kept to an acceptabte [eve[ by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-
term imbalances.

The foltowing tabte analyses foreign currency risk as of 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017: { in Lacs

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 201 7
Bank Batances 2,948.33 93 5.05
Trade Receivabtes 6,180.46 2,836. s1

Other Current Assets 412.87 1 ,878.95
Net Assets / (Liabitit'ies) 6,593.33 4,715.46

For the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, every percentage point
depreciation / appreciation in the exchange rate between the MUR and respective
currencies has affected the Group's incremental profit before tax as per below:

{ in Lacs
Year Change in currency

exchange rate
Effect on profit

before tax
31 March 2018 +5% / (-5%) 329.77 t (329.77)
31 March 2017 +5% I (-57") 735.77 / (235.77)

27. Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities:
During the year, the Group has not entered into Forward Exchange contract. The
year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been mitigated by a derivative
instrument or otherwise are as betow:

Particulars ( in Lacs { in Lacs Foreign
Currency

Amt in Lacs

Foreign
Currency

Amt in Lacs
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 201 8 31 March 2017

Amount
Receivable

412.87
6,180.46

1,719.11
2,996.35

5.1 1

76.47
USD

EURO

28.

b) lnterest rate risk
lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a f.inanc.iat
instrument witl ftuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group,s
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates is Nil as there are no
borrowings in the Group,

c) Price risk
Group does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investments bygroup.

Disclosure for operating leases under lnd AS 17 - ..Leases',:
rne Group have taken various_premises under operating lease. These are generatlycancettable and ranges from,11 months to 5 years anz are r"n"*.uGii-rrtrutconsent on mutualty agreeabte terms. some oi these tease agreementi njru'rri."escalation ctauses. There are no restrictions r,npor"o'lv't"ut" .rr.,ir'"rl^irt ..othere are no sub leases. There are no contingent rents. The tease payment s of 1 4,r.40M. NO,

107574

Dt

Foreign
Currency

26,51
43.23



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
No-tes to the consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Lacs (previous Year ( 35.33 Lacs) are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss under

"Rent" under Note 22.

The future minimum lease payments and payment profite of non'cancettable

29.

30.

o ratin leases are as under:
Particulars 31 March 2018

( in Lacs

Not later than one ear 44.27 38.29

Later than one ar but not later than five ears 200.36 171.30

Less than five years Nit Nit

Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
There ire no contingent tiabitities and commitments by the Group.

Retated party disclosure as required by lnd AS 24 are given betow:

A) Relationships:
Category l- Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia (Hotding Company)

Ajanta Pharma USA lnc. (Fettow Subsidiary)
Category ll - Directors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives:

Mr. Vinayak Muzumdar Director (APML)

Mr. Suttian Deerpaul Director (APML)

& Retatives of Key Management Personnel

B Followin transactions were carried out with related arties:

c Amount outstandin as on 31 March 201E

31 March 2017
{ in Lacs

31 March 2018
{ in Lacs

Categ
o

Sr.
No.

Particulars

Purchase of Goods:1

6,910.8110,294.79IlndiaA anti Pharma Ltd.
nsation:Mana ement Com2

BenefitsShort Term Em I
65.8770.87ilVinayak Muzumdar

Suttian Deer
&

auI
3,653.794,344.743 Dividend Paid to Ajanta Pharma

Ltd., lndia
Nit1 ,719.11Advance Received from Ajanta

Pharma USA lnc.
Nit87.67Advance Receive

Pharma USA lnc.
d from Ajanta

31 March
2017

{ in Lacs

31 March
2018

{ in Lacs

Categ
ory

ParticularsSr.
No.

Advance Receivable :1 159.84417.87Id anLa tdah rmPna ta 1,719.11NitIncSAUmraPhtn aA a)

M. NO
1075i 4

f

31 March 2017
{ in Lacs

4.

5.



Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
31. Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility

rticutars of CSR ex nditure are as fotlows:

32. Remuneration to Auditors :

33. The Group has one segment of activity namety "Pharmaceuticats".

ln terms of our report attached

For G. R. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
lCAl FRN : 1

Swapnil Modi
Partner

Mumbai, 24 Aprit 2018

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
AJanta Pharma (Mauritius) Limited

Lil.]'

Yogesh M. Agrawal
Director

Sr.
No.

Particulars 31 March 2018
{ in Lacs

31 March 2017
{ in Lacs

a Construction/ acquisition of asset Nit Nit
b On purposes other than (a) above 8.02 20.81

Particulars 31 March 2018
( in Lacs

31 March 2017
{ in Lacs

Audit Fees
For Certification and Other Matters 1.00

rvl. t{o.
1ir7574

OD

The

(

ctG ^

9.75 9.00
0.77
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC,

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. are being audited under the local lawsofthe country by the statutory auditor for the period lst Jan 2017 io 3lst December 2017. The
company follows the period I st April 201 7 io 3 I st March 201 8. In order to .on*iiaut" tt .
accounts of AJANTA PHARMA PHILIPPTNES INC. with that of the .on,,p-y, *" r,uu. u"",g!9T]d by the management of the company to audit the reinstated u""ount. of ereNrePIIARMA PHILIPPINES rNC. for the peiiod lst April 2017 to 3lst March 2018 under the
companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ln rnaiuiinJ'asl.

we have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financiar statements of AJANTA
PHARMA PHILIPPINES INC. (the company") comprising of rhe Standaron. surun.; sh".tas at 3lst March 2018, the Standalone statement 

-of piofit and Loss lin.luiing otlr..
comprehensive income), the Standalone Cash Frow Statement, the standarone Stateient of
changes in Equity for the year then ended, ard a summary ofthe significant accounting poticies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as',the itandalone Ind AS"financial
statements") prepared in accordance with group accounting poricies folowed uy alanta. rnese
consolidated/Standalone financial statements irave been lrepared solery to *uu"t. a;untu toprepare its consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
standalone Ind AS financiar statements_ in tirms of the requiremlnts of the companies Act,20l3("the Act") that give a true and fair view of the standalone state of affairs lnnun"iut poriti*;,
standalone profit (financiar perrormance incruding other comprehensi,re income;, ,iundulon"
cash flows and standalone statement ofchanges in equity ofthe iorpuny in accordance with the
accounting principles generally acceped in India, incluiing the accouniing itunourJrlp..il.u
under Section 133 of the Acr read with rerevant rules issueJthereunder. ThI;G;ti; doard of
Directors of the companies are responsible for maintenance of adequate u".ou'rting i*o.a, in
accordance with the provisions of the.Act for safeguarding the asseis or tn. C"n,f?"y 

""0 
r".preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities-; the selection una uppiiiuiion or

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance ofadequate internal financiat controls,
that were operating effectivery for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the u."orrting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, *n"tn". ar. to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements by the Directors ofthe Company, as aioresaid.

M. NO.
1ol574 *



The consolidated/Standalone financial statements has been prepared by the Management on the
basis of instructions received in this regard from Ajanta solely for the use by Ajanta in
preparation of its Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the group accounting
policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act,
the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit
report under the provisions ofthe Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financiai statements are free
from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The' procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error' In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company's preparation of the standalone Ind AS financiat statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness ofthe accounting estimates made by the Company's Board of Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe standalone Ind AS financial statements. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, ofthe standalone state of affairs (Financial position) ofthe Company
as at 3lst March 2018, and the standalone profit (financial perfonnance including other
comprehensive income) ofthe Company, the standalone cash flows and the standalone changes

in equity ofthe Company for the year ended on that date

M. NO.
107574

o

rt

Report on Other Legal and RegulatotT Requirements
I . As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid standalone

financial statements.

b) in our opinion, proper books ol account as required by law relating to preparation of the

aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our

examination of those books.



c) the standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of profit and Loss, the Standalone
Cash Flow Statement and the standalone statement ofchanges in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books ofaccount maintained for the purpose ofpreparation of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued
thereunder;

e) on the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors ofthe Company as on
3l st March 201 8 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the company, none of the
directors olthe company is disqualified as on 31st March 20lg from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

0 the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls are adequate in accordance to the size and operations of the
company,

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule I I ofthe companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,20l4, in our opinion and to the best ofour
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i' The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable
losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

/or G.R.Modi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's ber: ll26l7W

A Swapnil Modi
Partner
Membership number:
Mumbai
24th April 2018

107574
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018
1 . Corporate lnformation

Ajanta Pharma Phitippines lnc. is a timited tiabitity company incorporated and
domicited in Phitippines and is a whotty owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd.,
lndia. The address of its registered office is located at Unit 710, A)(A Life Btdg.,
1286, Sen. Git Puyat Ave., Makati City, Phitippines.

Company is primarily involved in the business of pharmaceutica[ and retated
activities.

The Financia[ Statement for the Company were authorised for issue by the
Company's Board of Directors on 24 Aprit, 2018.

2. Basis of preparation
The financial statement of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
as per The Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015 notified under
section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and other relevant Provisions of
the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the
historical cost basis, which have been measured at fair value or revatued amount
wherever appIicabte.

3. Functional and Presentation Currency:
Functional currency of the Company is Phitippine Peso (Php). The financial
statement is prepared & presented in lndian Rupees (lNR) as it is the functional
currency of the Hotding Company.

4, Rounding of Amounts
At[ amounts disctosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded
off to the nearest [acs.

5, Currentversusnon-currentclassification:
The assets and tiabitities in the batance sheet are presented based on
current/non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:
o Expected to be reatised or intended to be sotd or consumed in normal

operating cycle, or
. Hetd primari[y for the purpose of trading, or
. Expected to be realised within twetve months after the reporting period, or
e Cash or cash equivatent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to

settle a tiabitity for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are ctassified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is:
. Expected to be settted in normal operating cycle, or
. Hetd primarity for the purpose of trading, or
o Due to be settled within twetve months after the reporting period, or
. There is no unconditiona[ right to defer the settlement of the tiabitity for at

[east twetve months after the reporting period.
Att other tiabitities are treated as non'current.

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are ctassified as

tiabilities respectively.

1r,,. NO.
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Operating Cycle
Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time
between acquisition of assets and their reatisation in cash or cash equivatents,
the Group has determined its operating cycte as 12 months for the purpose of
ctassification of its assets and tiabilities as current and non-current.

6. SignificantAccountingPolicies
6.1 Property, plant and equiPment

Property and equipment are initially measured at cost and are presented in
the financiaI statements at cost [ess accumutated depreciation and
amortization and any accumulated impairment in vatue. Such cost includes
the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment at the time
that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met, and exctudes the
costs of day-to-day servicing.

The initiat cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price,
including import duties, taxes and any directly attributabte costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and [ocation for its intended use. Cost atso
'includes any retated asset retirement obtigation (ARO) and interest incurred
during the construction period on funds borrowed to finance the
construction of the projects. Expenditures incurred after the fixed assets
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhauI
costs, are normatty charged to deferred devetopment cost in the period the
cost are incurred. Major repairs are capitalized as part of property and
equipment onty when it is probabte that future economic benefits associated
with the items witt flow to the Company and the cost of the items can be
measured retiabty.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-tine basis to write off the cost of
assets, to their residual vatues over their estimated useful life as fo[[ows:

Particulars Useful Life
Condominium Units 20 years
Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings 2 years
Office Equipments 2 years
Computers 2 years
Motor Vehictes 5 years

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverabte. Futty depreciated assets are
retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation and amortization are recognized in profit or [oss.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized when either it has
been disposed of or when it is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on the retirement and disposal of an item of property and
equipment (catcutated as the difference between the net disposat proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
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6.2 lntangible Assets
lntangible assets are initiatty measured at cost and are subsequentty
measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumutated
impairment loss. These are amortized over estimated useful life of 3 years
using the straight-tine method. lf there is an indication that there has been
a significant change in amortization rate, usefut tife or residual vatue of an
intangible asset, the amortization is revised prospectively to reflect the new
expectations.

lntangible assets are derecognized when these assets are disposed of or
when no future economic benefits are expected from these assets.

6.3 Financial lnstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financiat asset of
one entity and a financiat tiabitity or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Classification
Company ctassifies financiat assets as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair vatue through
profit or [oss, on the basis of its business modet for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash ftows characteristics of the financial asset.

lnitial recognition and measurement
Att financial assets are recognised initiatty at fair vatue ptus, in the case of
financial assets not recorded at fair vatue through profit or [oss, transaction
costs that are attributabte to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are ctassified
in two broad categories:
o Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL /FVTOCI)
. Financial assets at amortised cost
When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either
recognised in the statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair vatue through profit
or toss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair
vatue through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for
impairment, if any)
Financiat assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is hetd within a

business modet, whose objective is to hold assets for cottecting contractua[
cash flows and contractua[ terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such financial
assets are subsequentty measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (ElR) method tess impairment, if any. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the Statement of profit and [oss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive
lncome ("FVTOC|")
Financiat assets under this category are measured initiatty as we[[ as at each

reporting date at fair value, when asset is hetd within a business mode[,
flows
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and setting financiat assets. Fair vatue movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

("FWPL"):
Financial assets under this category are measured initiatty as we[[ as at each

reporting date at fair value with all changes recognised in profit or loss.

lnvestment in EquitY lnstruments
Equity instruments which are held for trading are ctassified as at FVTPL. Att

other equity instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the
instrument, exctuding dividends, are recognised in the other comprehensive
income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other comprehensive
income to profit or [oss.

lnvestment in Debt lnstruments
A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVOCI, is ctassified as at FVTPL. Debt instruments
inctuded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with att
changes recognised in the Statement of profit and [oss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets
A financiat asset is primarity derecognised when the rights to receive cash

ftows from the asset have expired or Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash ftows from the asset.

lmpairment of Financial Assets
ln accordance with lnd - AS 109, Company appties expected credit toss (ECL)

model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financiat
assets that are debt instruments and trade receivabtes.

Financial Liabilities
Classification
Company ctassifies alI financiat tiabitities as subsequently measured at
amortised cost or FVTPL.

lnitial recognition and measurement
A[[ financiaI tiabitities are recognised initiatty at fair value and, in the case
of loans, borrowings and payabtes, net of directly attributabte transaction
costs.

Financiat tiabitities inctude trade and other payabtes, loans and borrowings
inctuding bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
Financial tiabitities at fair value through profit or toss inctude financia[
tiabitities hetd for trading and financiaI liabitities designated upon initiaI
recognition as at fair vatue through profit or [oss. lnterest-bearing toans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective
lnterest Rate (ElR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the tiabitities are derecognised as wetl as through EIR amortisation
process. Amortised cost is calcutated by taking into account any discount or
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ElR. The EIR amortisation is inctuded as finance costs in the statement of
profit and [oss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabi lities
A financial tiabitity is derecognised when the obtigation under the tiabitity is
discharged or cancetted or expires. When an existing financial tiabitity is
replaced by another from the same [ender on substantialty different terms,
or the terms of an existing tiabitity are substantiatly modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
tiabitity and the recognition of a new tiabitity. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Derivative Financial lnstrument
The Company uses derivative financiaI instruments, such as forward
currency contracts to mitigate its foreign currency risks. Such derivative
financial instruments are initiatty recognised at fair vatue on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at fair vatue. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair vatue is positive and as financiat tiabitities when the fair value is
negative.

6.4 lnventories
Finished products including traded goods are vatued at lower of cost and net
reatisable vatue. Cost is arrived at on moving weighted average basis. The
cost of lnventories have been computed to inctude atl cost of purchases,
cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production overheads based
on normaI capacity and other retated cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present condition.

Net realisabte vatue is the estimated selting price in the ordinary course of
business, tess the estimated costs of comptetion and se[ting expenses.

Slow and non-moving, obsotesces, defective inventory are fulty provided for
and vatued at net reatisabte vatue. Goods in transit are valued at actual cost
incurred up to the date of balance sheet.

6.5 Cash And Cash Equivalent
Cash and Cash Equivatents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank
inctuding fixed deposit/highty tiquid investments with originaI matur.ity
period of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
vatue.

6.6 Cash Flow Statements
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrats or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash ftows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financ.ing
activities of the Company are segregated.
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6.7 Foreign Currency Transactions
Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normatly
recorded at the exchange rate prevaiting on the date of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year'end are re-
measured at the exchange rate prevaiting on the batance sheet date. Non-
monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on
setttement or on restatement is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

6.8 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits witt ftow to the Company and the revenue can be retiabty
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Amount disclosed as revenue are inctusive of excise duty,
exctuding Goods and Service Tax (GST), sales tax or value added taxes or
service taxes or duties cottected on behatf of the government, and net of
returns, trade discount/ attowances, rebates, and amounts coltected on
behatf of third parties.

Revenue from sate of goods is recognised, when att significant risks and
rewards are transferred to the buyer, as per the terms of contracts and no
significant uncertainty exists regarding amount of the consideration that witl
be derived from the sate of goods.

Dividend income is recognised when right to receive dividend is estabtished.
lnterest income is recognised on time proportion basis. Insurance and other
c[aims are recognised as a revenue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis.

6.9 Employee Benefits
Short-term Benefits - The Company recognizes a tiabitity net of amounts
atready paid and an expense for services rendered by emptoyees during the
accounting period. Short-term benefits given by the ComPany to its
emptoyees include sataries and wages, social security contributions, short-
term compensated absences, bonuses and other non'monetary benefits.

Post-Employment Benefits - The Company does not have a format
retirement benefit ptan' However, the Company is subject to the provision

of Repubtic Act No. 7641 (known as the Retirement Law). This requires that
in the absence of a retirement plan of agreement providing for retirement
benefits of emptoyees in the private sector, an emptoyee upon reaching the
age of 60 years or more, but not beyond 65 years, who has served for at
teast five (5) years in a private company, may retire and shatl be entitted to
retirement pay. No actuarial computation was made considering that there

are no more than ten ("10) emptoyees who had served at least five years and

the turnover of emPloYees is high.

cognized
remainin
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end of the reporting period. Those are inctuded in the sataries and wages
account and are recognized when avaited of by the emptoyees.

Retirement and Other Long-term Benefits
Retirement and other long-term benefits costs are actuaria[ty determined
using the projected unit credit method. This method reftects services
rendered by employees up to the date of valuation and incorporates
assumptions concerning emptoyees' projected salaries. The calcutation of
defined benefit obtigations is performed annuatly by a quatified actuary.
When the catcutation resutts in a potentiat asset for the Company, the
recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
availabte in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
the future contributions to the plan. To calcutate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum
funding requirements.

Re-measurements of the net retirement and other long-term employee
benefits liabitity, which comprise actuariat gains and losses, the return on
ptan assets (exctuding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiting (if any,
exctuding interest), are recognized immediatety in OCl. The Company
determines the net interest expense to measure the net retirement benefit
tiabitity (asset) on at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net
defined benefit tiabitity (asset), taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit tiabitity (asset) during the period as a resutt of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit ptans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a ptan is curtaited, the
resulting change in benefit that retates to past service or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognized immediatety in profit or loss. The Company
recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit ptan
when the settlement occurs.

The net retirement and other tong-term benefits tiabitity recognized by the
Company is the aggregate of the present vatue of the defined benefit
obtigation reduced by the fair value of plan assets out of which the
obtigations are to be settted directly. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using risk-free interest rates of government bonds that have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the retated retirement and other
long-term benefits tiabitity.

Share-based compensation
Company has no share based compensation plan.

6.10 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs comprise interest expense on borrowings
charges. Borrowing costs incurred .in connection with the
production of a quatifying asset are capitatized as part of
asset constructed. Att other borrowing costs are recognized
comprehensive income under finance cost account.

and other bank
construction or
the cost of the

in statements of
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The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is

based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception date, whether
futfitment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right
is not expticitty specified in an arrangement.

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by lessor are classified as oPerating
leases. Leases rentats are charged to the statement of profit and loss on

straight [ine basis.

6.'l 2 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit
attributabte to the equity hotders of the company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per
equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity hotders of the company by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and atso the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of atl ditutive potential equity shares. The ditutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares
been actuatly issued at fair vatue. Ditutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, untess issued at a [ater
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independentty for
each period presented.

6.1 3 lncome Taxes
lncome tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

lncome tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in
equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. The
current income tax charge is based on taxable income for the year
calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantivety enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax is provided in fult, using the tiabitity method, on

temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and tiabitities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements' However, if the
deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or tiabitity in
a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the
transact.ion affects neither accounting nor taxabte profit or [oss, it is not

accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have

been enacted or substantivety enacted by the end of reporting period and

are expected to appty in the period when the related deferred income tax
asset ii realised oi the deferred income tax tiabitity is settted. Deferred tax

assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabte that future taxable

profit witt be avaitabte against which deductibte temporary differences can

be utitised'

6.14 Dividends to Shareholders
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Annual dividend distribution to the sharehotders is recognised as a tiabitity
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the sharehotders. Any
interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by Board of Directors.
Dividend payable is recognised directly in equity.

6.1 5 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments
General
Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Company has a present obligation
(tegat or constructive) as a result of past event; (b) it is probable (i.e., more
tikety than not) that an outftow of resources embodying economic benefits
wilt be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a retiable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. lf the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash ftows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment
of the time vatue of money and those risks specific to the tiabitity. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognized as interest expense. Where some or a[[ of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement shatt be recognized when, and onty when, it is
virtualty certain that reimbursement witt be received if the entity settles
the obligation. The reimbursement shatt be treated as a separate asset. The
amount recognized for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of
the provision, Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
.a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probabte that

an outflow of resources wilt be required to settte the obtigation;
.a present obtigation arising from past events, when no reliabte estimates is

possibte;
.a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probabitity of
outftow of resources is remote.

Contingent tiabilities are not recognised in the financial statements.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financiat
statements.

commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued
to parties for completion of assets and Non-canceltabte operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabitities, contingent assets and commitments are
reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Asset Retirement Obligation
Asset retirement obtigations (ARo) are provided for those operating lease
arrangements where the company has a binding obtigation at the end of the
tease period to restore the teased premisei in I condition similar to
inception of lease. ARo are provided at the present vatue of expected costs
to settte the obligation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as
part of the cost of that particutar asset, The cash ftows are discounted at a
current pre-tax rate that ref[ects the risks specific to the decommi

*
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statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning
are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated
future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from
the cost of the asset.

6.1 6 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair
value at each batance sheet date in accordance with lnd AS 113.

Financiats Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for the fottowing material items in the statement of financiat position:
o Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair vatue received from

Bank.
oMutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Vatue (NAV).
oEmployee Stock Option Ptan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuariat Valuation

Report.

Fair vatue is the price that woutd be received to sett an asset or settte a

tiabitity in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The fair vatue of an asset or a tiabitity is measured using the assumptions
that market participants woutd use when pricing the asset or tiabitity,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair vatue measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a

market participant's abitity to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by setting it to another market
participant that woutd use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses vatuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inPuts.

Att assets and tiabitities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
financiaI statements are categorised within the fair vatue hierarchy,
described as foltows, based on the lowest [eve[ input that is significant to
the fair vatue measurement as a whole:
.Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market Prices in active markets for
identical assets or tiabitities'

. Levet 2 - vatuation techniques for which the lowest tevel input that is

significant to the fair value measurement is directty or indirectly
observabte.

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the towest tevet input that is

significant to the fair vatue measurement is unobservabte'

For assets and tiabitities that are recognised in the financiat statements on a

recurring basis, the company determines whether transfers have occurred

between tevetr in the hieiarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the

lowest tevet input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whote) at the end of each reporting period.
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For the purpose of fair vatue disctosures, the company has determined
classes of assets and tiabitities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or tiabitity and the [eve[ of the fair vatue hierarchy as
exptained above.

6.1 7 Recent accounting pronouncements
Standards issued but not yet effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs in March 2018 has re-notified lnd AS 115,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Eartier, this Standard was omitted
and two other standards, lnd AS 11, Construction Contracts and lnd AS 18,
Revenue had been notified in its ptace. Now, after re-notification of lnd AS

115, lnd AS 11 and lnd AS 18 woutd be redundant. lnd AS 115 deats with
recognition of revenue arising from sate of goods, rendering of services,
interest, royalties and construction contracts. lt is a converged form of IFRS

15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. lnd AS 115 shatt be apptied
from financial years beginning on or after 1st April, 2018.

These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company.

6.1 8 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financiat statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and tiabitities, and the
disclosure of contingent tiabitities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates coutd resu[t in
outcomes that require a materia[ adjustment to the carrying amount of the
assets or tiabitities in future periods.

(a) Arrangement containing lease
At the inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the
arrangement is or contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of
an arrangement that contains a lease, Company separates payments and
other consideration required by the arrangement into those for the lease
and those for the other elements on the basis of their relative fair values.

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of
operating leases.

(b) Multiple element contracts with vendors
The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for
supply of goods and rendering of services. The consideration pa.id is/may be
determined independent of the vatue of suppties received and services
availed. Accordingty, the supplies and services are accounted for based on
their retative fair values to the overatt consideration. The suppties with
finite tife under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting
poticies) have been accounted under property, ptant and Equipment and/or
as lntangibte assets, since the Company has economic ownership in these
assets' company betieves that the current treatment represents the
substance of the arrangement.

o
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Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and the
assessment as to which components of the cost may be capitatized. Useful
tife of tangibte assets is based on the tife of useful lives/rates prescribed by
the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumptions also need to be made,
when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be caPitalised and which
components of the cost of the asset may be capitatised,

(d) lntangible Assets
lnternaI technicaI or user team assess the remaining useful tives of
lntangibte assets. Management betieves that assigned usefu[ lives are
reasonabte.

(e) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations
The obligation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the
basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuariat assumptions inctude discount
rate, trends in satary escatation and vested future benefits and tife
expectancy. The discount rate is determined with reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The
period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probabte
maturity of the post-emptoyment benefit obligations.

(f) Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
Deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductibte temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxabte profit witt be avaitabte against
which the deductibte temporary difference can be utilised. The
management assumes that taxable profits witl be availabte white recognising
deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for
income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews
at each batance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The
factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which coutd lead
to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financiat
statements.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of comptex tax
regutations and the amount and timing of future taxabte income. Given the
wide range of internationat business retationships and the tong-term nature
and comptexity of existing contractuat agreements, differences arising
between the actuat results and the assumptions made, or future changes to
such assumptions, coutd necessitate future adjustments to tax income and

expense atready recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on

reasonable estimates, for possibte consequences of audits by the tax

authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. The amount of
such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous

tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regutations by the taxable

entity and the responsibte tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevaiting

in the resPective country.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
that it is probabte that taxabte profit

atl unused tax losses to the extent
witt be avaitabte against which the

d _)
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tosses can be utitised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the tikety timing and the levet of future taxabte profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments.

(g) Recognition and measurement of other provisions
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the
assessment of the probabitity of an outflow of resources, and on past
experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual
outftow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the figure
included in other provisions.

(h) Contingencies
Management judgement is required for estimating the possibte outftow of
resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim / litigations against the
Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters
with accuracy.

(i) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal
vatue as reduced by appropriate atlowances for estimated irrecoverabte
amounts. lndividuat trade receivabtes are written off when management
seems them not co[tectibte. lmpairment is made on the expected credit
tosses, which are the present vatue of the cash shortfall over the expected
life of the financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption
about risk of defautt and expected loss rates, Judgement in making these
assumption and setecting the inputs to the impairment calcutation are based
on past history, existing market condition as wetl as forward tooking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(j) lnsurance claims
lnsurance claims are recognised when the Company have reasonabte
certainty of recovery,

(k) lmpairment reviews
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating
unit ('CGU') exceeds its recoverabte amount. Recoverabte amount is the
higher of its fair value less costs to setl and its value in use. The vatue in use
catcutation is based on a discounted cash ftow model. ln calcutating the
value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in respect of
highty uncertain matters, inctuding management's expectations of growth in
EBITDA, tong term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to
reflect the risks invotved.

DI

t3
M. NO.
107574
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6,570.127,859.45

2,601.622,929.94

AJ.nta Pharma hilipplnes lnc.

Balance Sheet as at 31 $arch 201E
3'1-r{ar- l I 31-Mar-17

- 
-T Note Nd Rs. ln Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Assets
(1 578.58 513.75

Equipment 4.',t4 5. 15

lbl Otherlntangible-tusets-
(c) Financiat Assets L

t -- =t- --
iat

Financ iat Assets 5

6 I 1.21 1.25
4.98(i 0the Non-current

15.43
Deferred tax assets net)

599.36 525.13Total Non -Cu re Assets

(2) Current Assets
7 2,406.43

(a)
: (b) I FinancialAss€ts* I O trade Receivabtes

8 4,131.01 3,691 .19

- 
t- (ii ) cash and cash equiva

9 1,023.0lr
96

260.45
lents

298. 314.0310
Other current assets

AssetsTotal Current
l T

E.81 7 ,095.

Equity And Liabilities
Equity

11 138.40 138.40
Equity Share CaPitat

12 5 289 4 25 05
Other EquitY

Total Equl 5,428.28 4,389.45

Liabllities
Non Current Liablll(U* ties

(a) 
,

Financiat Liabilities --- 100511 104.17
(i) Borrowings

Total Non-Current Llabilities 100.59 104.17

2J rq rent Llabilities

I tat Financial Liabilities
14 2,106.89

61

1,817.61
(i) Trade Payabtes

15 78 23.66
(ii ) Other currentlinanciat tiabitities

744.44 760.36
i current tiabilities

16
0the

LiabititiesTotal Current

Eq and L 4,4 81 ,095.25

See

of our rePort attached
For and on behalf of Eoard of Directors

. Modi & Co.
of Ajanta Pharma Philippines lnc.

Chartered Accountants I-- T-(lCAl FRN : 11

L _ --l
apnil

Agrawal

Partner
Director

Mumbal, 24 A il, 2018

I

4\
iG)

r

lnventories
2.3u.46

(c)

+-_]tl .- I!

_(a),
(b)

(b)
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AJanta Pharma Philipplnes lnc

Statement of Profit and Loss A<count for the ar ended 31 March 2018

Ix.t" n"
31-li{ar-18

Rs. ln Lacs

31-Mar-17
Rs. ln Lacs

lncome:
Retenue from operations
Othei tncome

17

18

12,763.96
50.24

12,181.88
7.97

Total lncome 12,a14.20 12,189.85

Expensei:
Cost of Materiats Consumed

7,043.36
(101.98)

1,147.30
16.39

99.36
2,097.65

6,796.)4
(814.07)

1,157,84
12.87
95.64

2.,11t.02

--Purchase-of 
stock-ln'Trade

Ia-"6-lrc"t"!9i*l!tlr*-cds@-tq!:il'rtecr*!4!sE"!1
19

-2021

n
23

u

Emptoyee Eenefits ExPenses

- Finance Costs- 
Depreciation E Amortisation Expense

Other Ex n5es 't0,302.09 9,3 59.6l
Total Exp€nses

2,E30.21
Profit Eefore Tax

tax Lxpense:
Current Tax

Deffered Tax

2,512.11

766.67
(1.87)

877.30
1.40

1, 47.36 1 ,951 .5',|
For The ear

Other ComPrehen3ive lncome / (Loss)

Item3 that will be reclasslfied subsequently to Profit or loss: (88.10) (264.48)
Exchange differences on translation of foreiSn operations

lncome tax retating to jtems that wilt be rectassified to profit or loss
(764.481
1264.481Net other Comprehenslve lncome / (Losr) to be reclasslfied iubsequently io profit or loss (88.10)

(88.10)
Other Com hensive lncome / ( Loss) for the ar, net of tax

1,6 59. 1,6 03
Tota omPre he lncome (Lost) e year

EarninB Per Equity Share (Baslc & Dlluted) (Face Value PHP100/') 26 2,130.93 2,379.a9

See accompanying notes formjng part of the financiaI statements

ln terms of our rePort attached ' 
For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For G. R. Modi A Co.

Chartered Accountants
of AJan ta Pharma PhlllPPines lnc.

(lCAl FRN : 11

-!fl"f"l r.;tl
Partner

- 

^tumbal, 
24 Aprll, 2ol8

Raresh M. Agrawal
Director

MNO
't0757 4

+
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Ajanta Pharm. ?hilltDines lnc.
Statement of Crihflows for th! y.!r .nded 3l ,Lrch 201E- - 

---

1..-
( ( ln Lacs)

31 March 2017+_ 31 March 2018

A. Cash Flow from Operatlng Actlvitlei
Prof t beFore Tax 2,512.11 2,830.21
Adiustment for :

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Finance Costs
Exchange Fluctuatjon

99.36
16.39

(88.10)

95.64
17.87

l'264.48)
Operatlng Cashflows before Working C.plt.l Ch.nger
Change in Working Capilat :

Decrease llncrease) in Trade Receivable
Decrease llncrease) in Other Non Curent fusets

2,539.77 2,67 4.74

(439.82) (534.94)

20.07
(110.95)
(814.07)

1 18.61
(39.48)

Decrease (lncrease) in Other Current tusets
Decrease (lncrease) in lnventorjes
lncrease (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities

(10.40)
15.08

(101.98)

19.03
289.28lncrease (Decrease) in Trade Payables

Cash Generated from Operations 2,330.95
.764.75],

1,t1r.47
(878.70)Net lncome tax paid

Net Cash tlow Gener.ted from Operatlng Activitiet 1,566.20 434.77

B Caih Flow from lnvesting Activities
Capital Expenditure on Property, Plant and Equiplnent inctuding CapitalAdvances (163.19) (6.21)

Net Cash used in lnvesting Activltlei ( 163. r 9) (6.23)

c
' 

Cash Flow from Flnancl;g Actlvltles

, Repayment of Non Current eoirovringi
lnterest Paid

Divldend Paid

(3.58) l.449.68)
(12.87)

l.664.42)

(16.39)
(620.41)

Net Cash used in Financing Actjvities (640.40) (1,126.97\

i--T--l-
Net lncrease / (Decreare) ln Cash and Cash Equ lvalents 7 67.50 (698.43)

l
-Casn 

and Cash Equfuatents as at the Beginning of the Year 26035 958.88
Cash and Cash Equivatents as at the End of the Year 1,023.05 260.45
Figures in brackets Indicater outftow.

Note :

1 . The above Cash Ftow Statement has been prepared under 'lnd i rect tlethod' as set out in Accounting Stand ard 7 ( lnd AS - 7) 'Statement o, Cash Ftow '.

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and deposits wjth banks. Cash equivalents are shotrt-term batances (with an original maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition).

See accompanying notes forming part of the financiat statements
ln terms of our report attached
For G. R. Modi & Co.

Chartered Accountanti
For and on beh.lf of Bo.rd of Directors of
Ajanta Pharma Phlllpplnes lnc.

(lCAl FRN : 1

'-].o$t.
Sw.pnillrtodi
Partner
ltumbai, 24 April, 20r8

Rajesh ,il. Agrawal
Director

M. NO.
107 571
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A. Equity Share Capital

Ajanta Pharma P ppines lnc.

B. Other Equity

138.40

Statement oaahanges in Equity for the year ended 31 ,{arch 2018

Subscribed & Paid up:

Balance as at I April
2017

changes in equity share
capital during the year

138.40
118.40

< in Lacs

Balance as at 31 March
201 8

Authoris
lssued :

Capital
Redemption

Reserve

Securities
Premium
Account

Foreign
Currency

Tranrlation
Reserve

Other ltems of
other

comprehensiYe
income

Non-

Controlling
lnterests

Total EquityTotalParticulars Retained
Earnings

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income

3,ZZA.44
1 ,9 51 .51

3,274.44
1 ,951 .5't

99 42As at 1 Apri 2016

64.48 64.48

3,129.03

zol.cg
1,587.03

t 65.073 129.03

resera Sn Genera

4 251.05 4 251 .05

ncome

(664.471 (664.421

1,951.s1 (264.48'tcomp
fer to

(664.42)
287,O9

Dividend Paid

At 31 March 2017
1,747.16

88.10
or perl

88.10Other comprehensive income
1,747.36

88.10
1 ,7 47 ,36

ncome (88.10)ota comp
620.43

1 ,659.26
Dividend Paid

1,747.36 1,659.26
620.43620.43

At 31 I'tarch 2018 3 129.03 414.O2 253.17

M. NO.
107571

o

LLL

see accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

Rajesh M. Agrawal
Director

Swapnil ,'todi
Partner

,tumbai, 24 April, 2018

Chartered Acc
(lCAl FRN : 112

/.UJc

+

118.40
138.40

138.40

General Share Based

Reserve Payment
Reserve

1,951.51

L
LI

1,647.O3

5,289.88 - 5,289.88

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Aianta Pharma PhilipPines lnc.
ln terms of our report attached
For G. R. Ltodi & Co.
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Ajanta Pha

Notes to Fi

rma Philippines lnc.
nancial Statement for the yenr ended 31 March 2018

I Property, Ptant and EquiPment4

4.1 Current Year Net StockAccumutated DePreciation /AmortisatronGross Btock (Cost or Deemed cost)
As at

31.03.2018
Exchange

Difference

As at
31 .03.2018

DisposaLsFor t
Yeat

As at
o1.u.zo17

ExchanSe
Difference

As at
3i.03.2018

DisposatsAdditionsAs at
01 .M.2017Particula15

345.12
o.47
4.97

227.92

o.1o

0.28
93.51

31.76

51.63
366.11

2.01

0.2E
41E.63

32.23

56.59
594.04

2.11

0.54
4.28

154.93

0.28
438.63

31.69

52.31
439.11

2.11

Leasehotd lmprovement

BuitdinSs
Furniture & fixture
Office EquiPment
Vehicles
Computers

Property, Plant an d Equipment

578.5E545.3094.91I ,123. EE 450.39159.75964.14Total

4.149 944.4515.4924.083.44
19.94 4,144.4515.4924.083.4420,64

Other lntangible Atsets
Computer Software
Total

(b)

582.73
bentlaP ant d uiPota EqT rtyroPe

Net BtockAccumutated Depreciation /Amortisation
Gross Bto<k (Cost or Deemed cost)

As at
t1.03.20't7

Exchange
0ifference

0isposaLrFor the
Year

As at
31-3.2017

tuat
01.04.2016

Exchange

0ifference
0isposatsAdditionsAs at

01.04.2016Particulars

0.78
71.96
28.10
45.55

302.E1

1.48

450.39

366.6E
3.39

6.16
136.29

0.63

46.89

0.03
7.04
t.oo
4.83

11.E5
0.14

73
4
7

56

0

20

E4

73

57

58

0.31
55.79

26.45
42.66

278.10
1.05

964.14

0.03
50.60

3.60
5.59

41.86
0.18

61.53

1.05

8.23
51.15

1.10

Leasehotd lmprovement
Buildings

Furniture & fixture
oifice Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment

Vehicles
Computers

(a)

15.491.64
6.0E16.60 5.1515.491.642.7314.40ao.642.056.OE16.60

Ottrer lntangible Assets

Computer Software
Total

(b)

518.90
Total P bandIP nt (a) ( )a Equipment

li{. NO.
107574

I

--- 21-55

- 3146--' 
6^07

- 6JJO

-- 0.53

0.2E
71.96
28.30
45.55

302.81
1 .48f

(a)

I

20.64

=

--+-ll
Pr;vious Year

As at
11.03.2017

" ol8
iis.63

- 31.69

- s231
439Jr

-Ln

0.31
489.23

34.24
49.47

435.E2
1.19

92.91404.36107.86Tot I ,010.45

5.152.7314.407o.g2.05



1.251.21

4.98

2,3c"4,.462 406.43
2,106.43 7

-+_-
3,591 .194,131.01

1

250.06
0.390.37

68
.451

314.03298.96

Pharma Phi ppines nc.
Notes to Financial Statement for the year 31 l,{arch 201E

31-l,{ar-18 3'l'Mar-17
R5. in Lacs

5 Other Non-Current Financlal A55ets
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

1.21 1.25its

6 Tax Assets (Net)
Deferred Tax Assets

Others 15.43 4.98

7 lnventoriet
Stock-in-trade

8 Trade Receivablet
lJnsecured

-Considered good

Batarrce with Banks . ln Current Accounts

10 Current Assets -i.08
Advances to Supptiers

Advances to 58.34 52.95

M. NO.
1015t4

o

t

t-
1_ l-EqLrEI

j
I

t-t
-----1-

-1 -

9 Cash and c.sh equivalents

Cash on lland

I

-+
24o.61



118.40I

Noter to Fln.nclrl Statement for the ye.r ended 31 ,rch 2018

11 Eq 5h.re Capit.l
3 ! -l,tar- 173l-l .r-1E t xo. * srruE -N; or shares Ri. ln L.cs Rs. in L.cs

,lE.a
tquity Sares U mC lm eactr

isucd, Subacrlb.d 6 P.la uP , 

-

- EquiEffir6 olTFFTm ea(fiTull, Paiil uP_-
=

82,000 118.40 82,000

r&10- 82 m 138.40

(.) Reconctft.tion ot n'rmbcr ot at th. beglnni .nd .t th. end of the
st l.rch 201E 31st h 20r7

Rs. t-acsNo. of Shares Rs. L.cs

asatt 82, 118.40

Add : Number ol shars atlottdas fully paid'up during the year

Less: Number of shares bought bact dunntthe year

Number o, ah:rres outslridlng as-t the and ol theyear

(b) Rightr, preferenc;and restrlctlonr .tt.ched to sh.re3

ine cJ.pinv nut issuA only one chss of oJdinary shares with voting ruhts having a par vatue of PHP100 per share'

Duriog lhe y;ar ended l1 Marctr 2018, amount pei shaE of d-ividend recognised as distributions to equity sharelotders was PHP 600 per equitv share

(Pr. ir. PHP 589.97 per equitY share)

tn the event of lrquidation of the company, the holdeG of equity shares wilt be entitted to receve remarnhg assets oi the companv. The distributron wirl

be in proportion to the numbers ol equitv shares held by shareholdeE'

(c ) Det.ilt of Share! held e.ch sh.reholderr holdinB more than 596

st l arch 201E 31st h 2017
f Houlng% Holdi

82, 100.00

Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sh.re5 reserved for lssue under optlont

1Z OTHER EQUITY

Gen;r.l Reserve

+

Ealance at the beginniry of the year _
1,129.03

Aad r Transferred from Statemenl of Profit & Loss
3,129.03 ,r29.03

Exchange Flu.tu.tion Reserve
(253.17) (16s.07)

Surplut in the St.tement of 1

Balance a! the beginning of the year
1,747.36

Profjt for the year
1

Les5: ApproPriations
620.41 661.42

.Di;dend Paid on ty shares
7,414 r,287.09

,749ulty

o

82,-iin

I

No. of Sh.rer

I

1,129 ol

1,951.51

M. No.
1075f4



Notes to St.tement

Loans

31- ar-18 31-Mar-17

Rr. in La(r Rs, in Lacs

13

from Banks
100.59 1M.17

100.59 1

Trade to Retated
14

2,106.89 1,817.61
1,417.61

Current Li.bi
Current of

15
78.61 23.66

78.61 23.66

Current
Others

16
744.44 760.36

M. NO.
10?574

for the year ended 31 March 2018

1Other

Finan;ial

vehicle

Trade

Non.Current



(814.07)(B) - (A) 1.-in-Train lnventories 1Fi n- rogress and

Aianti Pharma Philipplnes lnc.
Noies to Financial Statement for the ye;r ended 31 March 2O18

31-Mar-18
Rs. in Lacs

31-Llar- 17
Rs, in Lacs

17 Revenue from Op€rations
Sale of Products

Stoct-in-trade 12,763.96 12,1E1.88

.96 1 2,181.

18 OTHER INCOA.IE

lnterest from Others
Miscetlaneous lncome

11.25
3E.99

642

5.r3
24 7

19 Purchase of Stockin-Trade

20 Changes in tnventorles of Finished Goods, Work_in_Progress and Stockin_Trade
lnventories at the end of the Year :

Stock-in-tade 7,406,43 7,304.46

(A) 2,406.43 2,304.46

lnventoriei at th. beglhnint of the year :

Tstoc-r-in-traoe 2,304,46 1,490.38

(B) 2,104.46 1,490.38

Total changas in lnventoriei of ftnished Goods, Woiiin_progress and Stockin_Trade :

Work'in-Process (101.98) (814.07)

Tota

21 Empolyee Beneflt Expenses

Salarles, wages, Bonus and Allowances

-Staff 
Wafare Expens6

1,139.63
737

l
1 ,147.3O 1,1

22 Finance Cost
lnterest expenses 16.39 12.87

16 12.87

23 Oepreciatjon
95.64iation of Tangibte A55ets (Refer note 4)

9 95.64

24 Other Expenses

SetLing Expenses

cteanng rnd ForwardinS

670.50
9c/'l2
225.05

8.16
r 9.86
i9.7E
4.9E

116JE
u2.19

Travetling Expenses B!41
Power and Fue[

nenl 

-

9
18

19

6

4a

28 I

42i
99
NT
14 i

Tetephone, Telex & Postage

Repairs to Bujtding

E flllCg Dlqulglg" (NeO
123.35Miscetlaneous Ex se5

2,097.65 ,1 11,

M. NO.
t07 511

a

I

t_

--|--

E
7,043.36 6,796,34

I

I t--_

1,148.25
9.59-I

+

99.36i

666.97

974.46

-_r
I

I -t--



Notes
27.

Ajanta Pharma Philippines lnc.
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Capital Management
Company's poticy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future devetopment of the business.
Management monitors the return on capitat, as wetl as the level of dividends to equity
sharehotders. The board of directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher
returns that might be possibte with higher levets of borrowing and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position. Company's target is to achieve a
return on capital above 30%; in 2017-18 the return was 45% and in 2016-17 the return
was 63%.

Company monitors capital using a ratio of'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total liabitities, comprising interest-
bearing loans and borrowings and obtigations under finance leases, less cash and cash
equivalents and short term investments. Adjusted equity comprises a[[ components
of equity.

Company's policy is to keep the ratio below 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity
ratio at 31 March 2018 was as foltows. { in Lacs

Particulars 31 March
2018

31 March
2017

Debt (Debt + Current Liabitities) 7,929.94 2,601.62
Less: Cash and Cash equivatents 1,023.05 260.45
Net Debt A 1,906.89 7,341 .18
Equity B 5,428.28 4,389.45
Net Debt to Equity ratio AiB 0.35 0.53

28. Earnings Per share (EPS):
The numerator and denominator used to catculate Basic and Dituted Earnings Per
Share:

Particulars 31 March
2018

31 March
2017

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Profit attributable to Equity shareholders-
for Basic EPS (( in Lacs)

A 1,951.51

Add: Ditutive effect on profit (t in Lacs) B Nit
Profit attributabte to Equity shareholders
for computing Dituted EPS ({ in Lacs)

C=A-B 1,747.36 1,951.51

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
outstanding - for Basic EPS

D 82 000 82,000

Add: Ditutive effect of option outstanding-
Number of Equity Shares

E Nit Nit

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
for Dituted EPS

F=D+E 82,000 82,000

Face Value per Equity Share (Php) 100 100
Basic Earnings Per Share (t) A/D 2, 1 30.93 2,379.89
Dituted Earnings Per Shares (() ctF 2, 1 30.93 2,379.89

Employee Benefits
As required by lnd AS 19'Emptoyee Benefits', the Company offers its emptoyees:
Short-term emptoyee benefits - These benefits inctude sataries and wages and other

a

29.

overnment contributions which are due within twetve months after the end of the

1,747.36

Nit

M. NO.
10i571



31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Financial lnstruments by category FYTPL Amortised

Cost
FVTPL Amortised

Cost
Financial Assets
Trade Receivabtes 4,131.01 3,691 .19
Other Non-Current FinanciaI Assets 1.71 1 .25

Cash and cash equivatents 1,023.05 760.45
Total Financial Assets 5,155.27 3,9 5 2.89

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 100.59 't04.17

Other Current FinanciaI Liabitities 823.05 7 84.07
Trade Payabtes 7,106.89 1 ,817 .61

Total Financial Liabilities 3,030.53 2,705.80

Fair Value Hierarc a in Lacs

Level 1 - The hierarchy in [eve[ 1 inctudes financial instruments measured using
quoted prices. This inctudes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutua[ funds
are vatued using the ctosing NAV.

Level 2 - The fair value of financiat instruments that are not traded in an active
market (tike forward contracts) is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observabte market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. lf a[[ significant inputs required to fair vatue as instrument are

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Level Level

I t I

Financial assets
Non recurring fair value measurement

4,131.01 3,691.19Trade Receivabtes
1.21 1.25Other Non-Current FinanciaI Assets

1,023.05 260.45Cash and cash equivatents
5,155.27 3,9 5 2.8 9Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabi lities
Borrowings 100.59 104.17
Other Current FinanciaI Liabitities 823.05 784.07
Trade Payables 2,106.89 1 ,817 .61
Total Financial Liabilities 3,030.53 2,705.80

observabte, the instrument is inctuded in [eve[ 2,

Ajanta Pharma Philippines lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

period in which the emptoyee renders the retated service. The total consideration
paid in 2017-18 was { 1,147.30 Lacs (Previous Year ( 1,157.84 Lacs).

Retirement ptan - The Company did not yet set up a retirement plan since it does not
have more than ten (10) emptoyees who had served at least five years, Retirement
expenses are recognized upon actual availment of quatified employees which witt be
determined by the Company based on the actual number of years of service in
comptiance with RA No. 7641 . No retirement costs were recognized.

30. Financial lnstrument - fair values and risk management

Fair value measurements { in Lacs

________________

I t
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ttttt
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3'l March 2018

Level 3 - lf one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is inctuded in tevel 3. This is the case for untisted equity
securities, etc. included in level 3.

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure to fo[towing risks arising from financial instruments:

. credit risk

. tiquidity risk

. market risk

i. Risk management framework
Company's board of directors has overall responsibitity for the establishment and
oversight of the Company's risk management framework. Management is responsible
for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies, under the
guidance of Audit Committee.

Company's risk management policies are estabtished to identify and analyse the risks
faced by it, to set appropriate risk limits and controts and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularty
to reftect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities" Company,
through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obtigations.

Company's Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with
the Company's risk management po[icies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy
of the risk management framework in retation to the risks faced by the Company.
The audit committee is assisted in its oversight rote by internal audit. lnternal audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

ii" Credit risk
Company's credit risk is minimat, The trade receivables arise mainly from
transactions with its approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these
transactions is equa[ to the carrying amount of these financial instruments.
Customers are subject to stringent financiat, credit and [ega[ verification process. ln
addition, trade receivabte batances are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure
timety cotlections. Accordingty, the Company's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which
comprise cash in banks and receivabtes (except for advances to supptiers), the
Company's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. The Company
limits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash onty with financiaI institutions
duly evatuated and approved by the Board of Directors. The Company's receivables
is minimat since no defautt payments were made by the counterparties. An
impairment anatysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for
major ctients.

iii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be abte to meet its present and
future cash and co[atera[ obtigations without incurring unacceptab[e losses. The
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

its cash and cottaterat requirements. The company ctosely monitors its liquidity
position and deptoys a robust cash management system. Presentty the Company has

existing long-term [oans that fund capitat expenditures. Working capital
requirements are adequatety addressed by internatly generated funds. Trade
receivabtes are kept within manageabte levels.

iv. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices - wi[[ affect the Company's income or the vatue of
its hotdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, white
optimising the return. Financia[ instruments affected by market risk inctude loans

and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financiaI instruments.
Company's activities expose it to a variety of financiat risks, inc[uding the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. Al[ transactions are
carried out within the guidetines set by the risk management committee.

The sensitivity anatysis have been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the
proportion of financiaI instruments in foreign currencies are atI constant. The analys'is

exctudes the impact of movements in market variabtes on the carrying vatue of
postemptoyment benefit obligations, provisions and on the non-financial assets and
tiabitities. The sensitivity of the retevant income statement item is the effect of the
assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets
and financial tiabitities held as of 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

a) Currency risk
The Company's foreign exchange risk resutts primarily from movements of the
Phitippine peso against the US dottar with respect to US dotlar denominated financiat
assets and tiabitities.

The Company's transactional currency exposures arise from its inventories which is

100% purchases from Hotding Company in US dotlar. ln addition, 13% as at 31 March
2018 and 71% as at 31 March 2017 of the Company's debt are denominated in US

dottar. The Company periodicatty reviews the trend of the foreign exchange rates
and, as a practicat move, increases its US doltar denominated time deposits in times
when the Phitippine peso is depreciating or decreases its US dottar denominated time
deposits in times when the Phitippine peso is appreciating.

The foltowing tabte anatyses foreign currency risk as of 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017: ? in Lacs

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 l{arch 201 7

FinanciaI Assets
Trade Payables (2,106.89) (1,817.6'.1)

Borrowings &. Other FinanciaI Liabitities (23.30) (26.841

Net Assets / (Liabitities) (2,130.1 9) (1,844.45)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, every percentage point
depreciation / appreciation in the exchange rate between the PHP and respective

rofit before tax as er below:

*

Change in currency
exchange rate

Effect on profit before
tax (< in Lacs)

Year

+5% / (-5%) 106.s1 t (106.51)31 March 2018
92.72 / (92.22)31 March 2017

M. NO.
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Ajanta Pharma Philippines Inc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
31. Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities:

During the year, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract. The
year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been mitigated by a derivative
instrument or otherwise are as betow:

Particulars { in Lacs { in Lacs Foreign
Currency

Amt in Lacs

Foreign
Currency

Amt in Lacs

Foreign
Currency

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Amount
Payable

2,130.19 1,844.45 32.87 28.59 USD

b) lnterest rate risk
The Company's exposure to changes in interest rates retates primarily to the
Company's long-term debt obtigations. Fixed rate financial instruments are subject
to fair value interest rate risk. The fottowing tabte demonstrates the sensitivity
analysis to a reasonabty possible change in interest rates, with all other variable hetd
constant, of the Company's profit before income tax. The estimates are based on the
outstanding interest bearing tiabitities of the Company with floating interest rate as
at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017. { in Lacs

Year Change in interest rate Effect on profit
before tax

31 March 2018 +1% I (-1%l 1.79 t (1.79)
31 March 2017 +1% / (-1%) 1.28 t (1.28)

c) Price risk
Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investments.

32. Disclosure for operating leases under lnd AS 17 - "Leases":
The Company have taken a premise under operating lease. The lease is for a period
of one year and renewable every year upon mutual consent of the parties. There are
no contingent rents. The lease payments of t '18.42 Lacs (Previous Year { 19.86 Lacs)
are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss under "Rent" under Note 24.

The Company leases transportation equipment under a number of finance lease
agreements for a term of 5 years. Transportation equipment under finance lease
arrangements, shown as part of "Property, Plant and Equipment" account in the
statements of financial position. The aggregate future minimum payments under
finance teases are as under:

Particulars 31 March 2018
( in Lacs

31 March 2017
{ in Lacs

Not tater than one year 23.66
Later than one year but not later than five years 104.17
Less than five years Nit Nit

33. Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
There are no contingent tiabitities and commitments by the Company.

34. Retated party disctosure as required by lnd AS 24 are given betow:

A) Relationships:
Category I- Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia (Hotding Company)

M. No.
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Sam Gioskos Director (APPI)

& Retatives of Key Management Personnet

B) Followi transactions were carried out with related rties:

c Amount outstandin as on 31 March 2018

35, Remuneration to Auditors :

36. The Company has one segment of activity namety "Pharmaceuticats".

ln terms of our report attached

For G. R. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(tcAt FRN

Swapnil Modi
Partner

Rajesh M. Agrawal
Director

c

31 March 2017
{ in Lacs

Categ
ory

31 March 2018
( in Lacs

Sr.
No.

Particulars

Purchase of Goods:
I 7,039.28 6,796.34Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia

2 Key Management Compensation:
Short Term Employee Benefits

I 59.03 59.29Sam Gioskos

664.42I3 Dividend Paid to Ajanta Pharma
Ltd., lndia

31 March
2018

( in Lacs

31 March
2017

{ in Lacs

Sr.
No.

Categ
ory

1 Trade Payable :
1,817 .612,106.89Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia

Particulars 31 March 2017
{ in Lacs

Audit Fees 1.57

M- NO,
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Mumbai, 24 Aprit 2018

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Ajanta Pharma Philippines lnc.

1.

620.43

Particulars

31 March 2018
{ in Lacs

1 .51
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of AJANTA PHARMA USA INC.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA USA INC. are certified by the Management under the
local laws of the country for the period lst Jan 2017 to 3lst December 2017. The company
follows the period lst April 2017 to 3lst March 2018. In order to consolidate the accounts of
AJANTA PHARMA USA INC. With that of the company, we have been appointed by the
mansgement of the cornpany to audit the reinstated accounts cf A.IANTL PHARIV{A USA INC.
for the period lst April 2017 to 31st March 2018 under the companies Act in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in India (lnd AS).

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA
PHARMA USA lNC. ("the Company") comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 3lst
March 2018, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity
lor the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the standalone Ind AS financial statements")
prepared in accordance with group accounting policies followed by Ajanta. These
Consolidated/Standalone financial statements have been prepared solely to enable Ajanta to
prepare its consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act,20l3
("the Act") that give a true and fair view of the standalone state of affairs (financial position),
standalone profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), standalone
cash flows and standalone statement ofchanges in equity ofthe Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 ofthe Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance ofadequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the standalone lnd AS
financial statements by the Directors ofthe Company, as aforesaid.

Ot
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The consolidated/Standalone financial statements has been prepared by the Management on the
basis of instructions received in this regard from Ajanta solely for the use by Ajanta in
preparation of its Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the group accounting
policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act,
the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit
report under the provisions ofthe Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) olthe Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financiai statements are free
from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to.the Company's preparation ofthe standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumsta-nces. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the iccounting policies used and the
reasonableness ofthe accounting estimates made by the Company's 

-Board 
of Directors. as well

as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe standalone Ind AS financial statements. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required bithe Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accountin! principles
generally accepted in India, oIthe standalone state of affairs (Financial position) of thi'corpuny
as at 3lst March 2018, and the standalone profit (financial performance' including other
comprehensive income) of the company, the standalone cash flows and the standalon" Jh*g",
in equity ofthe Company for the year ended on that date

Report on Other Legal and RegulatorT Requirements
I ' As required by Section 143 (3) ofthe Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations'which io the best ofour
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid standalone
financial statements.

M. NO,
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b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c) the standalone Balance sheet, the Standalone statement of profit and Loss, the Standalone
Cash Flow Statement and the standalone statement ofchanges in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books ofaccount maintained for the purpose ofpreparation of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued
thereunder;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors ofthe Company as on
3lst March 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the company, none of the
directors of the company is disqualified as on 3l st March 201 g from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls are adequate in accordance to the size and operations of the
company,

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule I I ofthe companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, in our opinion and to the best ofour
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,
requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable
losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

/or G.R.Modi & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's regi number: l12617W

CASMpnil Modi
Partner
Membership number: 107574
Mumbai
24th April 2018

(
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Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 201 8
1 . Corporate lnformation

Ajanta Pharma USA lnc. is a limited tiability company incorporated and domicited
in United States of America and is a wholty owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma
Ltd., lndia. The address of its registered office is located at 440, US Highway, 22,
East Bridgewater, New Jersey 08807, USA.

Company is primarily invotved in the business of pharmaceutical and related
activities.

The Financial Statement for the Company were authorised for issue by the
Company's Board of Directors on 24 Aprit, 2018.

2. Basis of preparation
The financial statement of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
as per The Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015 notified under
section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and other relevant Provisions of
the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruat basis and under the
historicat cost basis, which have been measured at fair vatue or revatued amount
wherever appticabte.

3. Functional and Presentation Currency:
Functionat currency of the Company is US Dottars (USD). The financial statement
is prepared & presented in lndian Rupees (lNR) as it is the functional currency of
the Hotding Company.

4. Rounding of Amounts
At[ amounts disctosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded
off to the nearest lacs.

5. Currentversusnon-currentclassification:
The assets and liabitities in the balance sheet are presented based on
cu rrent/ non -current ctassification.

An asset is current when it is:
. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal

operating cycle, or
. He[d primarity for the purpose of trading, or
o Expected to be realised within twetve months after the reporting period, or
. Cash or cash equivatent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to

settle a tiabitity for at least twetve months after the reporting period.
At[ other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is:
o Expected to be settled in normal operating cycte, or
. Held primarity for the purpose of trading, or
. Due to be settted within twetve months after the reporting period, or
. There is no unconditionat right to defer the setttement of the tiabitity for at

least twelve months after the reporting period.
At[ other tiabi]ities are treated as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are classified as non-current assets and

l,l. i,lo.
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Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

Operating Cycle
Based on the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time
between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivatents,
the Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
ctassification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

6. SignificantAccountingPolicies
6.1 Property, plant and equiPment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less

depreciation. HistoricaI cost inctudes expenditure that is directty
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included
in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item witl ftow to the company and the cost of the item
can be measured retiabty.

Depreciation is catculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of
assets, to their residual values over their estimated usefut life as fottows:

Particulars Useful Life
Buitding 20 to 30 years
Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings 5 years

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate, at each end of reporting period. Where the carrying amount of
an asset is greater than its estimated recoverabte amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverabte amount. Gains and losses on disposals of
property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are included in the statement of profit or toss.

6.2 Financial lnstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of
one entity and a financial tiabitity or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Classification
Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through
profit or [oss, on the basis of its business model for managing the financiat
assets and the contractual cash ftows characteristics of the financial asset.

lnitial recognition and measurement
Att financial assets are recognised initiatty at fair vatue plus, in the case of
financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or toss, transaction
costs that are attributabte to the acquisition of the financiat asset.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified
in two broad categories:
o Financial assets at fair value (FVTPL /FVTOCI)
. Financial assets at amortised cost
When assets are measured at fair value, gains and tosses are either

Dt

*

recognised in the statement of Profit and loss (i.e. fair vatue through profit
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or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair
vatue through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for
impairment, if any)
Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a
business mode[, whose objective is to hold assets for coltecting contractual
cash ftows and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are sotety payments of principat and interest. Such financial
assets are subsequentty measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (ElR) method tess impairment, if any, The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the Statement of profit and [oss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive
lncome ("FVTOC|")
Financial assets under this category are measured initiatty as wett as at each
reporting date at fair vatue, when asset is hetd within a business modet,
whose objective is to hold assets for both coltecting contractua[ cash flows
and selting financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
("FWPL"):
Financial assets under this category are measured initiatty as wetl as at each
reporting date at fair vatue with att changes recognised in profit or [oss.

lnvestment in Equity lnstruments
Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. Att
other equity instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the other comprehensive
income. There is no recycting of the amounts from other comprehensive
income to profit or loss.

lnvestment in Debt lnstruments
A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVOCI, is ctassified as at FVTPL. Debt instruments
inctuded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with att
changes recognised in the Statement of profit and [oss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets
A financiat asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the asset have expired or Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset.

lmpairment of Financial Assets
ln accordance with lnd - AS 109, Company applies expected credit toss (ECL)

model for measurement and recognition of impairment [oss on the financial
assets that are debt instruments and trade receivabtes.

Financial Liabilities
Classification o

rr. NO.
107571 *
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Company classifies alI financial tiabitities as subsequently measured at
amortised cost or FVTPL.

lnitial recognition and measurement
Atl financiat tiabitities are recognised initiatty at fair vatue and, in the case
of toans, borrowings and payables, net of directty attributabte transaction
costs.

Financial liabitities inctude trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
inctuding bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
Financial tiabitities at fair vatue through profit or loss inctude financiaI
tiabitities hetd for trading and financiaI tiabitities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or [oss. lnterest- beari ng loans and
borrowings are subsequentty measured at amortised cost using the Effective
lnterest Rate (ElR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss

when the tiabitities are derecognised as wetl as through EIR amortisation
process. Amortised cost is calcutated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integra[ part of the
ElR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of
profit and [oss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
A financial tiabitity is derecognised when the obtigation under the tiabitity is
discharged or cancetled or expires. When an existing financial tiabitity is
reptaced by another from the same lender on substantiatly different terms,
or the terms of an existing tiabitity are substantiatty modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
tiabitity and the recognition of a new tiabitity. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Derivative Financial lnstrument
The Company uses derivative financiaI instruments, such as forward
currency contracts to mitigate its foreign currency risks. Such derivative
financial instruments are initiatly recognised at fair vatue on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequentty re'
measured at fair vatue. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair vatue is positive and as financiat tiabitities when the fair vatue is

negative.

6.3 lnventories
Finished products including traded goods are vatued at tower of cost and net
reatisabte vatue. Cost is arrived at on moving weighted average basis. The
cost of lnventories have been computed to inctude atl cost of purchases,

cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production overheads based
on normaI capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present condition.

Net reatisabte vatue is the estimated selting price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

OD
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Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

S[ow and non-moving, obsotesces, defective inventory are futly provided for
and valued at net realisable va[ue. Goods in transit are valued at actual cost
incurred up to the date of balance sheet.

6.4 Cash And Cash Equivalent
Cash and Cash Equivatents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank
inctuding fixed deposit/highty tiquid investments with originaI maturity
period of three months or less that are readily convertibte to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
vatue.

6.5 Cash Flow Statements
Cash ftows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrats or accruats of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash ftow from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

6.6 Foreign Currency Transactions
Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normatly
recorded at the exchange rate prevaiting on the date of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-
measured at the exchange rate prevailing on the batance sheet date. Non-
monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on
setttement or on restatement is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

6.7 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probabte that the economic
benefits witl flow to the Company and the revenue can be retiably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made,

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Amount disctosed as revenue are inctusive of excise duty,
excluding Goods and Service Tax (GST), sa[es tax or vatue added taxes or
service taxes or duties cotlected on behalf of the government, and net of
returns, trade discount/altowances, rebates, and amounts cotlected on
behatf of third parties.

Revenue from sate of goods is recognised, when atl significant risks and
rewards are transferred to the buyer, as per the terms of contracts and no
significant uncertainty exists regarding amount of the consideration that witl
be derived from the sate of goods.

Dividend income is recognised when right to receive dividend is established.
lnterest income is recognised on time proportion basis. lnsurance and other
claims are recognised as a revenue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis.

o
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Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

6.8 Employee Benefits
Short-term Benefits - The Company recognizes a tiabitity net of amounts
atready paid and an expense for services rendered by emptoyees during the
accounting period. Short-term benefits given by the Company to its
employees inctude sataries and wages, socia[ security contributions,
Medicare contributions, and other non-monetary benefits.

Post-Employment Benefits - The Company provides a 401 (k) retirement
program for futl-time emptoyees who are 21 years of age or otder. Etigibte
emptoyees are entitted to participate in the company offered ptan with an
option to contribute up the maximum 3% of annual base satary. For
emptoyees with an annual base satary above the annual compensation limits,
as determined by the Federal lnternal Revenue Service (Federat), the annual
APUI contribution will be capped at 3% of the Federal atlowed annual
compensation timits. Att contributions are 100% vested immediately to the
employee.

Share-based compensation
Company has no share based compensation plan.

6.9 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs comprise of other bank charges. Borrowing costs incurred in
connection with the construction or production of a quatifying asset are
capitalized as part of the cost of the asset constructed. Att other borrowing
costs are recognized in statements of profit & loss under finance cost.

6.10 Lease
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is
based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception date, whether
futfitment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right
is not expticitty specified in an arrangement.

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by lessor are ctassified as operating
teases. Leases rentals are charged to the statement of profit and loss on
straight [ine basis.

6.11 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit
attributabte to the equity hotders of the company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per
equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributabte to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and atso the
weighted average number of equity shares that coutd have been issued upon
conversion of att ditutive potential equity shares. The ditutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares
been actualty issued at fair value. Ditutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later
date. Ditutive potential equity shares are determined independentty for



Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

6.1 2 lncome Taxes
lncome tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

lncome tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it retates to items recognized directly in
equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. The
current income tax charge is based on taxable income for the year
calcutated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantivety enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax is provided in ful[, using the tiabitity method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and tiabitities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, if the
deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or [oss, it is not
accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period and
are expected to appty in the period when the related deferred income tax
asset is reatised or the deferred income tax tiabitity is settled. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabte that future taxable
profit witt be availabte against which deductible temporary differences can
be utitised.

6.1 3 Dividends to Shareholders
Annua[ dividend distribution to the sharehotders is recognised as a liability
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the sharehotders. Any
interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by Board of Directors.
Dividend payabte is recognised directly in equity.

6.14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments
General
Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Company has a present obligation
(tegat or constructive) as a result of past even[ (b) it is probable (i.e., more
tikely than not) that an outftow of resources embodying economic benefits
wi[[ be required to settle the obtigation; and (c) a retiabte estimate can be
made of the amount of the obtigation. lf the effect of the time vatue of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash ftows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment
of the time value of money and those risks specific to the tiabitity. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognized as interest expense, Where some or a[[ of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement shatt be recognized when, and onty when, it is
virtuatly certain that reimbursement witt be received if the entity setttes
the obligation. The reimbursement shatl be treated as a separate asset. The
amount recognized for the reimbursement sha[[ not exceed the amount of
the provision. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted

oo
to reflect the current best estimate,
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Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
.a present obtigation arising from past events, when it is not probable that

an outflow of resources witl be required to settle the obligation;
.a present obtigation arising from past events, when no retiable estimates is

possibte;
.a possible obtigation arising from past events, unless the probability of
outftow of resources is remote.

Contingent tiabitities are not recognised in the financiat statements.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disctosed in the financial
statements.

Commitments inctude the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued
to parties for comptetion of assets and Non-cancetlable operating lease.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are
reviewed at each balance sheet date,

Asset Retirement Obligation
Asset retirement obtigations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease
arrangements where the Company has a binding obligation at the end of the
lease period to restore the leased premises in a condition simitar to
inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present vatue of expected costs
to settte the obligation using discounted cash ftows and are recognised as
part of the cost of that particutar asset. The cash flows are discounted at a
current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning
tiabitity. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income
statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning
are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate, Changes in estimated
future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from
the cost of the asset.

6.15 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair
vatue at each batance sheet date in accordance with lnd AS 113.

Financiats Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for the fottowing materiat items in the statement of financial position:
o Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair vatue received from

Bank.
rMutual Funds are measured at fair values as per Net Asset Vatue (NAV).
.Emptoyee Stock Option Ptan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Vatuation

Report.

Fair vatue is the price that woutd be received to sell an asset or settte a

tiabitity in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a tiability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants woutd use when pricing the asset or liabitity,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair vatue measurement of a non-financiat asset takes into account a

nt's abitity to generate economic benefits by using the
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Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

asset in its highest and best use or by setting it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses vatuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
vatue, maximising the use of retevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservabte inputs.

All assets and tiabitities for which fair value is measured or disctosed in the
financiat statements are categorised within the fair vatue hierarchy,
described as fotlows, based on the lowest tevel input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:
.Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for

identical assets or tiabitities.
o Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectty
observable.

o Level 3 - Vatuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair vatue measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financiat statements on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest [eve[ input that is significant to the fair vatue measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair vatue disclosures, the company has determined
classes of assets and tiabitities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liabitity and the level of the fair vatue hierarchy as
exptained above.

6,16 Recent accounting pronouncements
Standards issued but not yet effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs in March 2018 has re-notified lnd AS 115,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Earlier, this Standard was omitted
and two other standards, lnd AS 11, Construction Contracts and lnd AS 18,
Revenue had been notified in its ptace. Now, after re-notification of Ind AS

115, lnd AS 11 and lnd AS 18 woutd be redundant. lnd AS 115 deats with
recognition of revenue arising from sale of goods, rendering of services,
interest, royatties and construction contracts. lt is a converged form of IFRS

15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. lnd AS 115 shatt be apptied
from financial years beginning on or after 1st Aprit, 2018.

These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company.

6.1 7 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and tiabitities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resutt in

OD
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Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the
assets or tiabitities in future periods.

(a) Arrangement containing lease
At the inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the
arrangement is or contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of
an arrangement that contains a lease, Company separates payments and
other consideration required by the arrangement into those for the lease
and those for the other elements on the basis of their retative fair vatues.

The Company has determined, based on an evatuation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of
operating leases.

(b) Muttiple element contracts with vendors
The Company has entered into muttipte element contracts with vendors for
suppty of goods and rendering of services. The consideration paid is/may be
determined independent of the vatue of suppties received and services
avaited. Accordingty, the supplies and services are accounted for based on
their retative fair vatues to the overatt consideration. The suppties with
finite tife under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting
poticies) have been accounted under Property, Ptant and Equipment and/or
as lntangibte assets, since the Company has economic ownership in these
assets. Company believes that the current treatment represents the
substance of the arrangement.

(c) Property, Plant and equipment
Determination of the estimated useful tife of tangibte assets and the
assessment as to which components of the cost may be capitatized. Useful
tife of tangibte assets is based on the tife of useful lives/rates prescribed by
the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumptions also need to be made,
when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and which
components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.

(d) lntangible Assets
lnternal technicaI or user team assess the remaining usefut tives of
lntangibte assets. Management betieves that assigned useful lives are
reasonable.

(e) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations
The obtigation arising from the defined benefit plan is determined on the
basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuariat assumptions include discount
rate, trends in satary escatation and vested future benefits and life
expectancy. The discount rate is determined with reference to market
yietds at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The
period to maturity of the undertying bonds correspond to the probabte
maturity of the post-emptoyment benefit obtigations.

(f) Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
Deferred tax asset is recognised for att the deductibte temporary differences
to the extent that it is probabte that taxable profit witt be availabte against
which the deductibte temporary difference can be utilised. The

M. NO,
107574

OD

(!
*



Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

management assumes that taxabte profits wi[[ be availabte white recognising
deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the catculation of provision for
income taxes and deferred tax assets and tiabitities. The Company reviews
at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The
factors used in estimates may differ from actuat outcome which could tead
to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
statements.

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of comptex tax
regutations and the amount and timing of future taxabte income. Given the
wide range of internationat business relationships and the long-term nature
and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising
between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to
such assumptions, coutd necessitate future adjustments to tax income and
expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on
reasonabte estimates, for possibte consequences of audits by the tax
authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. The amount of
such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regutations by the taxable
entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing
in the respective country.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for atl unused tax [osses to the extent
that it is probabte that taxabte profit witt be availabte against which the
[osses can be utitised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the tikety timing and the [eve[ of future taxable profits, future tax
planning strategies and recent business performances and developments.

(g) Recognition and measurement of other provisions
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the
assessment of the probabitity of an outflow of resources, and on past
experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual
outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the figure
included in other provisions.

(h) Contingencies
Management judgement is required for estimating the possibte outftow of
resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim / litigations against the
Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters
with accuracy.

(i) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances
Trade receivabtes do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal
value as reduced by appropriate altowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts. lndividual trade receivabtes are written off when management
seems them not cotlectibte. lmpairment is made on the expected credit
losses, which are the present vatue of the cash shortfalt over the expected
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191574

tife of the financial assets.
OD



Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption
about risk of defautt and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these
assumption and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation are based

on past history, existing market condition as wett as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(j) lnsurance claims
lnsurance ctaims are recognised when the Company have reasonable
certainty of recovery.

(k) lmpairment reviews
An impairment exists when the carrying vatue of an asset or cash generating
unit ('CGU') exceeds its recoverabte amount. Recoverabte amount is the
higher of its fair vatue less costs to sell and its value in use. The vatue in use

calcutation is based on a discounted cash flow modet. ln catculating the
value in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in respect of
highty uncertain matters, inctuding management's expectations of growth in
EBITDA, tong term growth rates; and the setection of discount rates to
reftect the risks invotved.
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, Ptant and

Non-Current A5sets
Assets

401 390 1Total

16,779.82,576.47

1 321 85Tota

1l
16,128 119,454.95Total Current iabilities

l1

2018
L 1-Mar-l E 3'l - ar-17

Rs . in Lacs

5 7,752.24 6,795.M.-1----

6
' 11,474.89 6,9?2.71

(ii) Cash and cash equivatents 7 983.30 2,912.39

8 366.04 149.67
other current assets

T Assets
2o,9 17,1

Liabilities

606.89 606.89
(a Equity Share

915.96 435.43

)

other

tz

Lia
Current Liabilities

Financiat Liabilities
17,418.M 12,993.U

(i) Trade btes
11

Other current tiabitities
12 860.96 3,003.55

175.95 110.92
Current Provisions

see accomPanylng notes forming Part of the Iinancial statements

of our report attached
For and on behalf of Board ot oirectors

For G. R. odi & Co.
ot Ar.nta Pharma USA lnc

Chartered Accountants

=

(lCAl FRN : 1l d ->\ t--
Modi

Yogesh ,,t, Agr.wa

Partner
Director

Mumbai, 24 2018
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(a)

(a)
(b)

(c)

(2)
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1
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(a)

(b)
(c)
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Pharm. USA lnc
'Statement 

of Profit and Lott Account for the
31-li{ar- 18 31-fiar-17

Rs- in LacsNot€ N Rs. in Lacs

lncome
18,716._97Revenue f rom operations

Other lncome

'14 t!!,81q.4e

Tota lncome 18,716 16,818.49

Expenses l
Cost of Materiats Consumed
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 15

16

17

18

19

15,543.26 17,962.',t4

Changes in inventories of Finished Goods/Work_in_Progress/Stock_in'T rade _ (957.20)
1 ,634.20

15,271.761

Emptoyee Benefit! Expenses

Finance Costs E2,67'
33.35Depreciatlon & lmonisatjon Expense

0ther Expenses 70 1,58E.E2 1,619.11

Total Expenses 17,975.11 15,221

P Before Tax 791.86 1,597.19

Tax Expense: I ' 279.40 1,083.33
(415.56)

Current Tax

929.41

Other Comprehensive lncome / (Loss)
' 

items that will be reclassitied subsequently to profit or lols:
differences on translation of foreign operations 73.64

lncome tax retati to items thaiwitt be reclassifled to profit or toss

Net other ve lncome / (Loss) to be re.la iubsequently to M.ez)- 73.61
(3r.92) 73.61Other Com rehensive lncome / Loss for the year, net of tax

(Loss) 480.53 5

Earning Per Equity Share (Basic & Diluted) (Face Value USD 100/-) 22 5 24 9,294.13

Seelccompanying notes forming part of the financial statgments

ln terms of our rePort att.ched
For G. R. l,todi & Co.

ihirtered Accountant!

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Alant Pharma USA lnc.

(lCAl FRN:'11 I

Swapnill.todi Yogeih l,t. Agrawal

Partner
l{umbai

Director

24 A, t,2018

107571

ended 3i l,{iich 2018
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896.01

15.80
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Aian Pharma LrSA lnc.
Statement of Cashflows for the year ended 31 ,'tarch 201E ( t ln Lacs)

31 lilarch 2Oi7

Cash Flow from Operating Actlvitle!
Profit before Tax 791.86 1,597.19
Adjustment for

Depreclatlon and Amortisation Expense IM
Provlsion folElpired Goods ,

i Exchange hnciuation 1

33.35
8r.o

15.80

1,045.01
(31.92)

110.92
73.64

Operating Cashflows Capital Changes 1,920.99 1,817.55

I ctranges in worhng capiEf:
Decrease (lncrease) in TradeI Decreise (tnCreasei in other

--- T
Recelvabte
Current Asets

(4,552.18) 16,497.241
152.03

,5,271.i6)
.216.37],

Decrease (lncrease) in lnventorjes (957.20)

lncrease (Decrease) in Other Current Liabititjes
lncrease lDecrease) in ir;de Payables

'423.48].
4,424.19

1 ,'t 16.63
il Jo2.5j

Cash Generated trom Operations 195.96

turaoJ
2,849.74

i.252.221iN- lncome tax aid
Net Cash flow Generated from Operating Activities 83 44 2,597.52

B. Cash Flow from lnvesting Activlties
Capital Expenditure on Prope , Plant and Equjpment inctuding CapitalAdvances i43.87)

Net Caih uied in lnvesting Actlvltlet (43.87) 8.64

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Repayment of Non Current Borrowjngs .1,719.11l,

{,82.67],

(37.241

lnterest Paid

Net Carh uied In Flnancing Actlvltles (1,801.78) 137.74\

11,929.10) 2,568.92

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the Eeginning of the Year
Cash and Cash Equjvatents as at the End of the Year

343.48
2,9't2.39

Figures in brackets indicates outftow.
Note :

1 . The above Ca5h Ftow Staternent has been prepared under 'lndirect I'tethod' as set out in Accounting Standard 7 (lnd AS - 7) Statement of Cash FtoW'.

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and deposits with bank. Cash equivatents are shotrt-term batances (with an oriSinal maturity of three
months or tess from the date of acquisition).

For and on beh.lf of Board ot Directors of
Ajanta Pharma L.,SA lnc.Chartered

(tcAr FRN :

Swapnilrrtodi
Partner
Mumbai, 24 April, 2018

Yogesh M. Agrawal
Dlrector

31 ,,{arch 2018

l

I

8.64

-1-
I

Net lncrease / (Oecrease) in Cash and Caih Equivalenti

2,912.39 
|

983.30
1

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements.
ln terms of our report .tt.ched
For G, R. Modi & Co.

\ ut,^\



A. Equity Sh.re Capital

B. Other Equity

Brlance ri .t I April
2017

Changes in equity sh.re
capital during the year

606.89
606.89
606.89

Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 t arch 2018

Authorised:
lssued :

Subscribed & Paid up:

Balance as at 31 ,{arch
2018

Capital
Redemptlon

Reterue

Securitiei
Premium
Account

Share Based

Payment
Reserve

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Reserve

Other ltems of
other

comPrehensive
income

Non-
Controlling
lnterests

P.rticula15 Total Total Equitytr c"n.'nl
Reserve

Retained
Earning!

As at I Aprll 2016
Piofit for the period
Other comprehensive income

13?.s1)
:

73.64

(983.18).
929.41

73.64

(983.18)
929.41

73.64

.!
979.41

7( 950

Totat comprehensive income
Transfer to General reserve

Deferred Tax impact on opening c;rry
forward loss

DiYidend Paid

At 31 ,rtarch 2017

929.41

435.431 ,344.97 41.13 435.43(950.67)

73.64 't,003.05

41 5.56

't,003.05

415.56415.56

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income

517.45 512.45
(31.92)

512.45
(3 r. e2)(31.e2)

TotaL comprehensive income
Dividend Paid

l (31.92) 480.53 480.53512.45

At 31 March 2018 (950.57) 1,857.42 9.20 915.96 9't 5.96

o

t\t_ No
147514

For and on behalf of Board of Directori of Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.

1? )

,c

See accompanying notes forming part of the financi.l statements

,{umbai, 24 April, 20'18

Yogesh M. Agrawal
Director

ln terms of our report attached
For G. R. llodi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

swapnilModi
Partner

(lCAl FRN : I

,@
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< in Lacs

606.89
606.89
606.89
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Ajanta Pharma USA lnc
Notes to Financial Stiiement for the year ended 31 lvlarch 2018
4 Property, Ptant and Equipment
4-1 Current Year (< Lacs,

Gross Btock (Cost or Deemed co5t) Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation Net Btock

Particulars
As at

01.u.7017
Additions Disposats Exchange

Differen.e
As at

11.03.2018
As at

01.04.2017
For the

Year
Disposats Exchange

Difference
As at

31.03.2018
As at

31.03.2018
Property, Plant and Equipment
Freehotd Land

Buitdings
Furniture & fixture

'166.15

235.07
36.75 43.87

166.35
235.07
80.62

27.36
20.00

35.93
44.79

166.35
199.15

15.83
Total Property, Plant and Equipment 434.17 47.87 482.O4 47.36 33.35 80.72 40't .3 3I

4.2 Previous Year

Gross Btock (Cost or Deerned cost) Accumutated Depreciation/Arnortisation Net Elock

Particulars
As at

01.04.2016
Additions Disposats Exchange

Difference
As at

31.03.2017
As at

0(.G.2016
For the

Year
Disposals Exchange

Difference
As at

31.03.2017
As at

31.03.2017
Property, Plant and Equipment
Freehotd Land
Buitdings
Furniture & fixture

169.96
240.11

-1Iy

1.50
5.09
0.80

166.35
735.07

36.75
18.61

11.8'l
,E
e56

0.49
0.36

166.35

207.72
't6.74

Total Property, Plant and Equlpment 447.67 9.49 434.17 37.47 15.80 0.86 47.36 390.81

oo,
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Pharma USA lnc
Noter to Financial Statement the year ended 3'l l,larch 2018

6,795.047,752,24
lnventoriet

-in-Trade

31-i{ar-'l8
Rs. in Lacs

3 | -Ltar- I7
Rs. in L.cs

11,474.89 6 922.71

Receivables6

-considered
71

C.sh and Cash Equivalents
Balaoce with Banks . ln Current Accounts

7 C.sh and cash equivalents

981.30 2,91?.39
2.39

293.40
Parties

-+-
Expense

8 Other Current Asseti

0.46

77.1E

149.53

0,14Advances to Emptoyees
149.67366.04
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10,000 606.89
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10,000 606.89r 0,000 606.89Common Sto.ks ol USD 10O each futty Pajd up

.t the

(b) Rlghts, pref€rences.nd restrlctlons .ttached lo shares

(c ) Detajlr of Equity shares h;iJ e.ch sh.reholders holdlng mor. th.n 5%

10, 000

shares wilt be entjtled to receive remaininB assett of the compa
The company have not declared dividend.

No. ot Sh.re! Rr. in L.cs No. of Shires

value of USD 100 p€r shareThe company has issued only one class of equity shares with voting riShts having a par
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ng

9 Share C.pit.l
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Common Stocks of USD 100 each
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Number ol shares outstandrng as at the Cn ol lhEyaar

915.96

31st li4.rch 2017

(950.67)
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Ajanta Pharma USA lnc
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 ,larch 2018

31- ar- 18

Rr. in Laca

31-ltar-17
Rr. in Lacs

11 Trade Payable3
Trade Payabtes to Related Pa 17,418.04 17,993.84

17 4',l

12 Other Current Liabilitles
Others payables 860.96 1,2U.44

1,719.11PayabLe to retated rty (APML)

.55

13 Current Provirions' 
sites netunrs ioi ex red s (Refer note 26) 1,175.95 130.92

1,t75.95 130.92

14 Revenue from Op€rationi
Sale of Products

Stoclcin.Trade 1E,716.97 16,E1E.49

15 Purchases ot Traded Goodi 15,543,26 17,962.14

'! 6 Changes in lnventoriei of Finlihed Goodr, Work.in-proSreis and Stock-in-Trade
Inventories.t the end of the year :

Stock-in'trade 7,752.24 6,795.04
(a) 7,752.74 6,795.U

lnventorier.t the beginninS ot the year :

Stock-in-trade 6,795.M 1,523.28
(B) 6,795.M 1,523.28

Total changes in lnventories of Finirhed Goodg, Workin'progregs and Stock-in-Trade :

Work-in-Process (957.201 15,271.761
Tota nges n

17 Empolyee Benefit Expenses

Sataries, Wages, Bonus and Altowances 1,406.51

227.70
827.93
68.08Staff wetfare Expenses

1, 4 6

lnterest expenses 82.67

19 Depreciation
Depreciation of Tangible Assets (Refer note 4) 33.35 15.80

31.3 5 r 5.80

2M.72
996.06

79.07

261.76

0.50
9.57

34.84
7.52

0.46
t.3E

21.24

Settjng Expenses 401.25
916.14

Legal and Professional Fees

Tetephone, Telex E Postage
Repairs to Othe6

36.53

20 Other Expenses

't,588.82 1,619,11
Misceltaneous Expenres
lnsurance

Clearing and Forwardlng

Tratetting Expenses

Consumption of Stores & Spare Parts
103.56

!251-30)

58J2
Power and Fue[
Rent

122.99
27 A6
1rn

1441.?

o
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Notes
21 .

Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
Capital Management
Company's poticy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future devetopment of the business.
Management monitors the return on capital, as wett as the [eve[ of dividends to equity
shareholders. The board of directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher
returns that might be possible with higher levets of borrowing and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position. Company's target is to achieve a
return on capital above 30%; in2017-18 the return was 57% and in 2016-17 the return
was 58%.

Company monitors capitat using a ratio of'adjusted net debt' to 'adjusted equity'. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total tiabitities, comprising interest-
bearing loans and borrowings and obtigations under finance leases, less cash and cash
equivalents and short term investments. Adjusted equity comprises at[ components
of equity.

Company's poticy is to keep the ratio betow 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity
ratio at 31 March 2018 was as fottows. { in Lacs

Particulars 31 March
2018

31 March
2017

Debt (Debt + Current Liabitities) 18,779.00 15,997.39
Less: Cash and Cash equivatents 983.30 2,912.39
Net Debt A 17,295.70 13,08s.00
Equity B 1,522.85 1,042.32
Net Debt to Equ'ity rat'io A/B 11.36 12.55

22. Earnings Per share (EPS):
The numerator and denominator used to catcutate Basic and Dituted Earnings Per
Share:

Particulars 31 March
2018

31 March
2017

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Profit attributabte to Equity sharehotders-
for Basic EPS ({ in Lacs)

A 512.45 929.41

Add: Ditutive effect on profit ({ in Lacs) R Nit Nit
Profit attributabte to Equity sharehotders
for computing Dituted EPS (t in Lacs)

C=A.B 512.45

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
outstanding - for Basic EPS

D 10,000

Add: Ditutive effect of option outstanding-
Number of Equity Shares

E Nit

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
for Dituted EPS

10 000 't0,000

Face Vatue per Equity Share (USD) 100
Basic Earnings Per Share (t) A/D 5,124.54 9,294.13
Dituted Earnings Per Shares (t) c/F 5,124.54 9,294.13

Employee Benefits
As required by lnd AS 19'Employee Benefits', the Company offers its employees:
hort-term emptoyee benefits - These benefits inctude salaries and wages and other

3

ernment contributions which are due immediately on payment and the same is

929.41

10,000

Nit

F=D+E

100

M, NO-
107574



Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

deposited with Government authorities. The total consideration paid in 2017-18 was
< 1,634.20 Lacs (Previous Year t 896.01 Lacs).

Retirement ptan - The Company provides a 401 (k) retirement program for futl-time
employees who are 21 years of age or otder. Etigibte employees are entitted to
participate in the company offered ptan with an option to contribute up the maximum
3% of annuat base salary. For employees with an annual base satary above the annual
compensation limits, as determined by the Federal lnternal Revenue Service
(Federat), the annua[ APUI contribution witl be capped at 3/. of the Federal attowed
annual compensation timits. At[ contributions are 100% vested immediatety to the
emptoyee.

24. Financial lnstrument - fair values and risk management

Fair value measurements < in Lacs
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Financial lnstru ments by category FVTPL Amortised
Cost

FVTPL Amortised
Cost

Financial Assets
Trade Receivabtes 11 ,47 4.89 6,791.79
Cash and cash equivatents 983.30 2,912.39
Total Financial Assets 12,458.19 9,704.18

Financial Liabilities
Other Current Liabitities 860.96 3,003.55
Trade Payabtes 17 ,418.04 12,993.84
Total Financial Liabilities 18,279.O0 15,997 .39

Fair Value Hierarch ( in Lacs

Level 1 - The hierarchy in level 1 inctudes financiat instruments measured using
quoted prices. This includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds
are vatued using the ctosing NAV.

Level 2 - The fair vatue of financiat instruments that are not traded in an active
market ([ike forward contracts) is determined using vatuation techniques which
maximise the use of observabte market data and rety as littte as possibte on entity'
specific estimates. lf at[ significant inputs required to fair value as instrument are

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Financial assets and tiabilities measured
at fair value

Level Level

I t I

Financial assets
Non recurring fair value measurement
Trade Receivables 11,474.89 6,791 .79
Cash and cash equivalents 983.30 2,912.39
Total Financial Assets 12,458.19 9,704.18

Financial Liabilities
860.96 3,003.55Other Current Liabitities

17,418.04 12,993.84Trade Payabtes
Total Financial Liabilities 18,279.0O 15,997.39

M. NO.
1t\.7574
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Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Level 3 - lf one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observabte market
data, the instrument is included in [eve[ 3. This is the case for untisted equity
securities, etc. inctuded in levet 3.

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure to fotlowing risks arising from financial instruments:

o credit risk
. liquidity risk
o market risk

i. Risk management framework
Company's board of directors has overall responsibitity for the estabtishment and
oversight of the Company's risk management framework. Management is responsibte
for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies, under the
guidance of Audit Committee.

Company's risk management poticies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by it, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management poticies and systems are reviewed regutarty
to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. Company,
through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
controt environment in which att employees understand their roles and obtigations.

Company's Audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with
the Company's risk management poticies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy
of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.
The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. lnternal audit
undertakes both regutar and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

ii. Credit risk
Company's credit risk is minimal. The trade receivables arise mainty from
transactions with its approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these
transactions is equal to the carrying amount of these financial instruments.
Customers are subject to stringent financiat, credit and tegal verification process. ln
addition, trade receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure
timely coltections. Accordingty, the Company's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which
comprise cash in banks and receivables (except for advances to suppliers), the
Company's exposure to credit risk arises from defautt of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. The Company
limits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with financial institutions
duly evatuated and approved by the Board of Directors. The Company's receivabtes
is minimal since no defautt payments were made by the counterparties" An
impairment anatysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for
major clients.

iii. Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and

re cash and cottateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The
pany's objective is to, at a[ times maintain optimum levets of tiquidity to meet

o

a
t,1. NO.
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Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

its cash and cottaterat requirements. The Company closety monitors its liquidity
position and deptoys a robust cash management system. Presentty the Company has

existing long-term toans that fund capitaI expenditures' Working capitat
requirements are adequately addressed by internalty generated funds. Trade
receivabtes are kept within manageable tevels.

iv. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices - will affect the company's income or the vatue of
its hotdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and controt market risk exposures within acceptabte parameters, white
optimising the return. Financial instruments affected by market risk inctude loans

and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financiaI instruments.
Company's activities expose it to a variety of financiat risks, inctuding the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. At[ transactions are
carried out within the guidetines set by the risk management committee.

The sensitivity anatysis have been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the
proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are at[ constant. The anatysis
exctudes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying vatue of
postemployment benefit obligations, provisions and on the non-financial assets and

tiabitities. The sensitivity of the relevant income statement item is the effect of the
assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financiat assets

and financial tiabitities hetd as of 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

a) Currency risk
The Company have no foreign exchange risk as their entire dealings are in their [oca[
functional currency i.e., US Dottars.

b) lnterest rate risk
The Company have no borrowings and hence there is no interest rate risk.

c) Price risk
Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investments.

25. Disclosure for operating leases under lnd AS 'l 7 - "Leases":
The Company have taken a premise under operating lease' The lease is for a period
of one year and renewable every year upon mutual consent of the parties. There are
no contingent rents. The lease payments of t 58.52 Lacs (Pr. Yr. t 9.57 Lacs) are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss under "Rent" under Note 19.

26. Provision of anticipated Sales Returns for Expired Goods - lnd AS 37

Particulars 31 March
2018

( in Lacs

31 March
2017

{ in Lacs

Balance at the rnntn of the ar 130.92 Nit

Add: Provisions made durin the r 1,230.50 1 30.92

Less: Amount written back/uti lized durin r 185.57

Balance at the end of the Year 1,175.95 130.92

27. Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
There ire no contingent tiabitities and commitments by the Company.

Retated party disctosure as required by lnd AS 24 are given betow:
M. NO
t07S7t
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Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

A) Relationships:
Category I - Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia (Hotding Company)
Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd. (Fettow Subsidiary)

Category ll - Directors, Key Management Personnel & their Relatives:
Dr. Ramesh Jhawar Director (APUI)
& Relatives of Key Management Personnel

B Followin transactions were carried out with related arties:

c Amount outstandin as on 31 March 2018

29, The Company has one segment of activity namely "Pharmaceuticals".

ln terms of our report attached

For G. R. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI FRN :

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Ajanta Pharma USA lnc.

)

SwapnilModi
Partner

Sr.
No.

Particulars Categ
ory

3l March 2018
t in Lacs

31 March 201 7
( in Lacs

1 Purchase of Goods:
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., India I 14,843.17 17,962.14

Management Compensation:
Short Term Employee Benefits
Dr. Ramesh Jhawar lt 255.72

3 Re-imbursement from
Pharma Ltd., lndia

Ajanta 1,572.72 1,533"89

4 Advance paid to Ajanta Pharma
(Mauritius) Ltd.

I 1 71 9 11 Nit

lnterest paid to Ajanta Pharma
(Mauritius) Ltd.

82.67 Nit

Sr.
No.

Particulars Categ
ory

31 March
2017

( in Lacs

31 March
2016

{ in Lacs
1 Trade Payable :

anta Pharma Ltd., lndia 17,418.04 12,993.84
Advance Payable :

Ajanta Pharma (Mauritius) Ltd. I Nit 1,719.11
3 Other Receivable :

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia I 72.18 Nit

oo

c
NO.

75t-4

Mumbai, 24 Aprit 2018

--+ \ la/,^ I
Yogesh M. Agrawal
Director

2.
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
The accounts of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. are being audited under the local laws of
the country by the statutory auditor for the period lst Jan 2017 to 31st December 2017. The

company follows the period lst April 2017 to 31st March 2018. In order to consolidate the

accounts of AJANTA PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. With that of the company, we have been

appointed by the management of the company to audit the reinstated accounts of AJANTA
PHARMA NIGERIA LTD. for the period lst April 2017 to 31st March 2018 under the

companies Act in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (lnd AS).

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of AJANTA
PHARMA NIGERIA LIMITED ("the Company") comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet

as at 3lst March 2018, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other

comprehensive income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement, the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary ofthe significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the standalone lnd AS financial

statements") prepared in accordance with group accounting policies followed by Ajanta. These

Consolidatedi Standalone financial statements have been prepared solely to enable Ajanta to
prepare its consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the

standalone Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013

("the Act") that give a true and fair view of the standalone state of affairs (financial position),

standalone profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), standalone

cash flows and standalone statement ofchanges in equity ofthe Company in accordance with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 ofthe Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance ofadequate intemal financial controls,

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the standalone Ind AS

oo/financial statements by the Directors ofthe Company, as aforesaid.

M. NO,
107514



c) the Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, the Standalone

Cash Flow Statement and the standalone statement ofchanges in Equity dealt with by this Report

are in agreement with the relevant books ofaccount maintained for the purpose of preparation of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian

Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued

thereunder;

e) on the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors ofthe Company as on

3lst March 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, none of the

directors of the company is disqualified as on 3lst March 2018 from being appointed as a

director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating

effectiveness of such controls are adequate in accordance to the size and operations of the

company,

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 1l ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best ofour

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative contracts,

requiring provision under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable

losses;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

/or G.RModi & Co
Chartered Accounlanls
Firm's registr mber: l126l7W

oo/t
*

CA Swapnil Modi
Partner
Membership number:
Mumbai
24th April 2018

107574
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The Consolidated/Standalone financial statements has been prepared by the Management on the

basis of instructions received in this regard from Ajanta solely for the use by Ajanta in
preparation of its Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the group accounting

policies followed by Ajanta.

Auditor's Responsibility

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, ofthe standalone state of affairs (Financial position) ofthe Company

as at 3lst March 2018, and the standalone profit (financial performance including other
comprehensive income) ofthe Company, the standalone cash flows and the standalone changes

in equity ofthe Company for the year ended on that date

o,

examination of those books.

*

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act,
the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit
report under the provisions ofthe Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free
from material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment ofthe risks of
material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
enor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal financial control relevant
to the Company's preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and

fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the

reasonableness ofthe accounting estimates made by the Company's Board of Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe standalone Ind AS financial statements. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatoty Requirements
l. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report, tothe extent applicable, that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid standalone

financial statements.

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the

aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our

M. NO.
1075t1



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018
1 , Corporate lnformation

Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd. is a timited tiabitity company incorporated and
domicited in Nigeria and is a whotty owned subsidiary of Ajanta Pharma Ltd.,
lndia. The address of its registered office is tocated at Btock 6, House 6b, Howson
Wright Estate, Oregun Road, Ojota, Lagos, Nigeria.

The Company is primarity invotved in the business of pharmaceutical and related
activities.

The Financial Statement for the Company were authorised for issue by the
Company's Board of Directors on 24 Aprit, 2018.

2. Basis of preparation
The financial statement of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
as per The Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015 notified under
section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and other relevant Provisions of
the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the
historicat cost basis, which have been measured at fair vatue or revalued amount
wherever appticabte.

3. Functional and Presentation Currency:
Functional currency of the Company is Nigerian Niara (NN). The financiaI
statement is prepared & presented in lndian Rupees (lNR) as it is the functional
currency of the Hotding Company.

4. Rounding of Amounts
At[ amounts disclosed in the financiat statements and notes have been rounded
off to the nearest [acs.

5. Currentversusnon-currentclassification:
The assets and tiabitities in the balance sheet are presented based on
cu rrent/ non -current ctassification.

An asset is current when it is:
o Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal

operating cycte, or
o Held primarity for the purpose of trading, or
r Expected to be reatised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
. Cash or cash equivatent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to

settle a tiabitity for at teast twetve months after the reporting period'
Al[ other assets are ctassified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is:
. Expected to be settted in normal operating cycte, or
. Held primarity for the purpose of trading, or
. Due to be settted within twelve months after the reporting period, or
. There is no unconditionat right to defer the settlement of the tiabitity for at

least twetve months after the reporting period.
Atl other tiabitities are treated as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are ctassified
tiabitities respectivetY.

o

oD/

M. NO.
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2018

Operating Cycle
Based on-the nature of products / activities of the Group and the normal time

between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents,

the Group has determined its operating cycte as 12 months for the purpose of

ctassification of its assets and tiabilities as current and non-current'

6, SignificantAccountingPolicies
6.1 ProPerty, Plant and equiPment

eroierty, ptant and equipment are stated at historicat cost less

depreciition. Historicat cost inctudes expenditure that is directty
attributabte to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are inctuded

in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as

appropriate, onty when it is probabte that future economic benefits

aisociated with the item witt ftow to the company and the cost of the item
can be measured retiablY.

Depreciation is calcutated on a straight-tine basis to write off the cost of
assets, to their residuat vatues over their estimated useful [ife. The asset's

residuat vatues and usefut lives are reviewed and adjusted if aPpropriate, at
each end of reporting period. where the carrying amount of an asset is
greater than its estimated recoverabte amount, it is written down

immediatety to its recoverabte amount. Gains and losses on disposats of
property, ptant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and are included in the statement of profit or [oss'

6.2 Financial lnstruments
A financiat instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of
one entity and a financial tiabitity or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Classification
Company ctassifies financial assets as subsequentty measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair vatue through
profit or [oss, on the basis of its business modet for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset.

lnitial recognition and measurement
Att financiat assets are recognised initiatty at fair vatue ptus, in the case of
financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or [oss, transaction
costs that are attributab[e to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified
in two broad categories:
. Financial assets at fair vatue (FVTPL /FVTOCI)
. Financial assets at amortised cost
When assets are measured at fair vatue, gains and losses are either
recognised in the statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair vatue through profit
or loss (FVTPL)), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

Financial Assets measured at amortised cost (net of any write down for
o

*

impairment, if any)
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Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a

business modet, whose objective is to hold assets for cottecting contractua[
cash flows and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are sotely payments of principal and interest. Such financial
assets are subsequentty measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (ElR) method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the Statement of profit and [oss.

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive
lncome ("FVTOC|")
Financial assets under this category are measured initiatty as wetl as at each
reporting date at fair value, when asset is hetd within a business modet,
whose objective is to hotd assets for both collecting contractuat cash f[ows
and setting financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income,

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
("FWPL"):
Financial assets under this category are measured initiatty as we[[ as at each
reporting date at fair value with att changes recognised in profit or [oss.

lnvestment in Equity lnstruments
Equity instruments which are hetd for trading are classified as at FVTPL. Att
other equity instruments are classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the other comprehensive
income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other comprehensive
income to profit or loss.

lnvestment in Debt lnstruments
A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI' Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVOCI, is ctassified as at FVTPL. Debt instruments
inctuded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair vatue with att
changes recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets
A financiat asset is primarity derecognised when the rights to receive cash

ftows from the asset have expired or company has transferred its rights to
receive cash ftows from the asset.

lmpairment of Financial Assets
ln accordance with lnd - As 109, company appties expected credit toss (ECL)

model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financiaI

assets that are debt instruments and trade receivabtes.

Financial Liabilities
Classification
company ctassifies att financiat tiabitities as subsequentty measured at

amortised cost or FVTPL.

(t
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lnitial recognition and measurement
Att financiaI tiabitities are recogn'ised initiatty at fair value and, in the case

of loans, borrowings and payabtes, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

Financiat tiabitities inctude trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
inctuding bank overdrafts and derivative financiaI instruments.

Subsequent measurement
Financiat tiabitities at fair vatue through profit or loss inctude financiat
tiabitities hetd for trading and financial tiabitities designated upon initiaI
recognition as at fair vatue through profit or [oss. lnterest-bearing loans and

borrowings are subsequentty measured at amortised cost using the Effective

lnterest Rate (ElR) method. Gains and tosses are recognised in profit or loss

when the tiabitities are derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation
process. Amortised cost is catcutated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
ElR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of
profit and [oss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
A financiat tiabitity is derecognised when the obligation under the tiabitity is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financiat tiabitity is

reptaced by another from the same lender on substantialty different terms,
or the terms of an existing tiabitity are substantiatty modified, such an

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the originat
tiabitity and the recognition of a new tiabitity. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Derivative Financial lnstrument
The Company uses derivative financiat instruments, such as forward
currency contracts to mitigate its foreign currency risks. Such derivative
financiat instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequentty re-
measured at fair vatue. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair vatue is positive and as financiat tiabitities when the fair value is

negative.

6.3 lnventories
Finished products inctuding traded goods are vatued at lower of cost and net
reatisabte vatue. Cost is arrived at on moving weighted average basis. The
cost of lnventories have been computed to inctude atl cost of purchases,
cost of conversion, appropriate share of fixed production overheads based
on norma[ capacity and other retated cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present condition.

Net reatisable vatue is the estimated setting price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of comptetion and setting expenses.

Slow and non-moving, obsolesces, defective inventory are futly provided for
and vatued at net reatisabte vatue. Goods in transit are vatued at actual cost

M. NO,
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6.4 Cash And Cash Equivalent
Cash and Cash Equivatents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank
including fixed deposit/highty tiquid investments with originaI maturity
period of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

6.5 Cash Flow Statements
Cash ftows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature,
any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or
financing cash ftows. The cash flow from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

6.6 Foreign Currency Transactions
Revenue Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normat[y
recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are re-
measured at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on
setttement or on restatement is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

6.7 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probabte that the economic
benefits witl ftow to the Company and the revenue can be retiabty
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

Revenue is measured at the fair vatue of the consideration received or
receivabte. Amount disctosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty,
excluding Goods and Service Tax (GST), sales tax or va[ue added taxes or
service taxes or duties col[ected on behalf of the government, and net of
returns, trade discount/atlowances, rebates, and amounts coltected on

behatf of third parties.

Revenue from sate of goods is recognised, when atl significant risks and

rewards are transferred to the buyer, as per the terms of contracts and no

significant uncertainty exists regarding amount of the consideration that wi[[
be derived from the sate of goods.

Dividend income is recognised when right to receive dividend is estabtished.
lnterest income is recognised on time proportion basis. lnsurance and other
claims are recognised as a revenue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis.

6.8 Employee Benefits
Short-term Benefits - The company recognizes a tiabitity net of amounts

atready paid and an expense for services rendered by emptoyees during the
accounting period. Short-term benefits given by the Company to its
emptoyees inctude sataries and wages and other non-monetary benefits.

M. NO.
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Post-Employment Benefits - No provision has been made in respect of
emptoyee ietirement benefits as emptoyees are not etigibte for such

benefits. Besides the company does not have any pension scheme or any

contracted agreement binding itsetf to the emptoyees'

Share-based comPensation
Company has no share based compensation plan.

6.9 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs comprise of other bank charges, Borrowing costs incurred in

connection with the construction or production of a qualifying asset are

capitatized as part of the cost of the asset constructed. Att other borrowing
costs are recognized in statements of profit & loss under finance cost.

6.10 Lease
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a tease is
based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception date, whether
futfitment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right
is not expticitty specified in an arrangement.

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of the risks and

rewards of ownership are retained by lessor are classified as operating
leases. Leases rentats are charged to the statement of profit and loss on
straight [ine basis.

6.11 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit
attributable to the equity hotders of the company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Dituted earnings per
equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity hotders of the company by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The ditutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivabte had the equity shares
been actuatty issued at fair vatue. Ditutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, untess issued at a later
date. Di[utive potential equity shares are determined independently for
each period presented.

6.1 2 lncome Taxes
lncome tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax.

lncome tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directty in
equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. The
current income tax charge is based on taxable income for the year
catcutated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax is provided in fut[, using the tiabitity method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabitities
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and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, if the
deferred income tax arises from initia[ recognition of an asset or tiabitity in
a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or [oss, it is not
accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantivety enacted by the end of reporting period and
are expected to appty in the period when the retated deferred income tax
asset is reatised or the deferred income tax liability is settted. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabte that future taxabte
profit witt be availabte against which deductible temporary differences can
be utitised.

6.13 Dividends to Shareholders
Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a l'iability
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any
interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by Board of Directors.
Dividend payabte is recognised directty in equity.

6.14 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments
General
Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Company has a present obtigation
(tegat or constructive) as a resutt of past event; (b) it is probable (i.e., more
tikety than not) that an outftow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a re[iabte estimate can be
made of the amount of the obtigation. lf the effect of the time value of
money is materia[, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash ftows at a pre-tax rate that reftects current market assessment
of the time value of money and those risks specific to the tiabitity. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognized as interest expense. Where some or atl of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement shatt be recognized when, and only when, it is

virtuatly certain that reimbursement witt be received if the entity settles
the obtigation. The reimbursement sha[[ be treated as a separate asset. The
amount recognized for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of
the provision. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reftect the current best estimate.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
.a present obtigation arising from past events, when it is not probabte that

an outftow of resources witl be required to settte the obligation;
.a present obtigation arising from past events, when no retiabte estimates is

Possibte;
oa possible obtigation arising from past events, untess the probabitity of

outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent tiabitities are not recognised in the financiat statements.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disctosed in the financial
statements.

Commitments inctude the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued
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Provisions, contingent tiabitities, contingent assets and commitments are

reviewed at each batance sheet date.

Asset Retirement Obligation
Asset retirement obligations (ARO) are provided for those operating lease

arrangements where the company has a binding obtigation at the end of the
tease period to restore the teased premises in a condition similar to
inception of tease. ARO are provided at the present vatue of expected costs

to settle the obtigation using discounted cash flows and are recognised as

part of the cost of that particutar asset. The cash ftows are discounted at a
current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning
tiabitity. The unwinding of the discount is recognised in the income

statement as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning
are reviewed annuatly and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in estimated
future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from
the cost of the asset.

6.1 5 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair
vatue at each batance sheet date in accordance with lnd AS 1 13.

Financiats Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for the foltowing material items in the statement of financiat position:
. Derivative financiat instruments are measured at fair vatue received from

Bank.
.Mutual Funds are measured at fair vatues as per Net Asset Vatue (NAV).

.Employee Stock Option Ptan (ESOP) at fair values as per Actuarial Vatuation
Report.

Fair vatue is the price that woutd be received to setl an asset or settte a

tiabitity in an ordinary transaction between market participants at the
measurement date,

The fair value of an asset or a tiabitity is measured using the assumptions
that market participants woutd use when pricing the asset or liabitity,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair vatue measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a

market participant's abitity to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by setting it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are availabte to measure fair
vatue, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservabte inPuts.

A[[ assets and liabitities for which fair value is measured or disctosed in the
financiaI statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as fottows, based on the lowest [eve[ input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whote:
.Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for

M. NO.
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.Level 2 - Vatuation techniques for which the lowest tevel
significant to the fair value measurement is directly
observabte.

.Levet 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest [eve[
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservabte.

input that is
or indirectly

input that is

For assets and tiabitities that are recognised in the financiat statements on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest [eve[ input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined
ctasses of assets and tiabitities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or tiabitity and the [eve[ of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

6.1 6 Recent accounting pronouncements
Standards issued but not yet effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs in March 2018 has re-notified lnd AS 1'15,

Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Eartier, this Standard was omitted
and two other standards, lnd AS 11, Construction Contracts and lnd AS 18,
Revenue had been notified in its place. Now, after re-notification of lnd AS

115, lnd AS 11 and lnd AS 18 would be redundant. lnd AS 115 deals with
recognition of revenue arising from sate of goods, rendering of services,
interest, royatties and construction contracts. lt is a converged form of IFRS

15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. lnd AS 115 shatt be apptied
from financial years beginning on or after 1st Aprit, 2018.

These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company.

6.1 7 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabitities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates cou[d result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the
assets or liabitities in future periods.

(a) Arrangement containing lease
At the inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the
arrangement is or contains a lease. At the inception or on reassessment of
an arrangement that contains a lease, Company separates payments and
other consideration required by the arrangement into those for the lease
and those for the other etements on the basis of their retative fair values.

The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements that such contracts are in the nature of
operating leases.
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(b) Multiple element contracts with vendors
The Company has entered into muttipte element contracts with vendors for
suppty of goods and rendering of services. The cons'ideration paid is/may be

determined independent of the vatue of supplies received and services

availed. Accordingty, the suppties and services are accounted for based on

their retative fair vatues to the overatt consideration. The supplies with
finite tife under the contracts (as defined in the significant accounting
poticies) have been accounted under Property, Ptant and Equipment and/or
as lntangibte assets, since the Company has economic ownership in these
assets. Company betieves that the current treatment represents the
substance of the arrangement.

(c) Property, Plant and equiPment
Determination of the estimated useful tife of tangibte assets and the
assessment as to which components of the cost may be capitatized. Useful
life of tangible assets is based on the tife of useful lives/rates prescribed by
the GAAPs of the respective countries. Assumptions also need to be made,
when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitatised and which
components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.

(d) lntangible Assets
lnternaI technicat or user team assess the remaining usefu[ lives of
lntangibte assets. Management betieves that assigned usefuI tives are
reasonabte.

(e) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations
The obtigation arising from the defined benefit ptan is determined on the
basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions inctude discount
rate, trends in salary escalation and vested future benefits and life
expectancy. The discount rate is determined with reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds. The
period to maturity of the undertying bonds correspond to the probable
maturity of the post-emptoyment benefit obtigations.

(f) Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
Deferred tax asset is recognised for att the deductibte temporary differences
to the extent that it is probab[e that taxabte profit witt be avaitabte against
which the deductibte temporary difference can be utilised. The
management assumes that taxabte profits w'it[ be availab[e while recognising
deferred tax assets.

Management judgment is required for the catculation of provision for
income taxes and deferred tax assets and tiabitities. The Company reviews
at each batance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The
factors used in estimates may differ from actuat outcome which could lead
to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the financial
statements,

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax
regulations and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the
wide range of internationat business retationships and the long-term nature
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between the actual resutts and the assumptions made, or future changes to
such assumptions, coutd necessitate future adjustments to tax income and
expense atready recorded. The Company estabtishes provisions, based on
reasonabte estimates, for possibte consequences of audits by the tax
authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. The amount of
such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable
entity and the responsibte tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing
in the respective country.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for atl unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit witt be avaitabte against which the
tosses can be utilised, Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the tikety timing and the levet of future taxabte profits, future tax
ptanning strategies and recent business performances and devetopments.

(g) Recognition and measurement of other provisions
The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the
assessment of the probabitity of an outflow of resources, and on past
experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet date" The actual
outflow of resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the figure
inctuded in other provisions.

(h) Contingencies
Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outftow of
resources, if any, in respect of conti ngencies/ ctaim / litigations against the
Company as it is not possibte to predict the outcome of pending matters
with accuracy.

(i) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances
Trade receivabtes do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal
vatue as reduced by appropriate atlowances for estimated irrecoverabte
amounts. lndividuat trade receivabtes are written off when management
seems them not collectible. lmpairment is made on the expected credit
[osses, which are the present value of the cash shortfatl over the expected
tife of the financial assets.

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumption
about risk of defautt and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these
assumption and setecting the inputs to the impairment calcutation are based
on past history, existing market condition as wetl as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(j) lnsurance claims
lnsurance claims are recognised when the Company have reasonabte
certainty of recovery.

(k) lmpairment reviews
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating
unit ('CGU') exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the
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catculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. ln catcutating the
vatue in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in respect of
highty uncertain matters, inctuding management's expectations of growth in
EBITDA, tong term growth rates; and the setection of discount rates to
reftect the risks invotved.
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1,607.09 938.48

'AJanta Pharma NiSeria Ltd.
Balance Sheet as at 31 l,larch 20,8

31-},{ar-18 31-t{ar-17
Rr- ln LacsNote No Rs. in Lacs

Ar5ets
(1) Non-Current Asrett

(a) Deferred tax assets (net) 4 51.91

T No urrent Arsets 51.93

t2j Current A!5etr
lnventories
Financial Assets

(a) 5

6
7

8

10.85

(b)
(i) Trade Receivables 1,114,96 275.50

60?.91
49.??

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 487.13

(d) Other current assets 4.80
Total Current Assett

Asrets 1,60 09

Equity And Liabilities
Equity

(a)
(b)

Equity Share Capital 9 t6.05
(136.04)0ther Equity 10

Total 162.?9 (99.99)

Liabilities
1) Current Liabilitles

la) i
Financiat Liabitities

(i)Trade Payables 11

'tz
177.88
817.52(b) other current tiabititie5 831.95

Total Current Llabilities 1,444.80 1,090.40
990.40

I See accompanying notes forming part of the financiat statements

r+
ln termr of our report attached
For G. R. Modi & Co. For and on behalt of Board of Directors
Chartered Acco of AJ.nta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

lCAl FRN : 1126

L

Yogesh M. Agrawal

Partner Director

t{umbai, 24 April, 20l E

990.40

l i16.?91
25.59

612.84

I
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.AJanta Pharma Nigerla Ltd.
Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 llarch 2018

31- ar- 18 31-l ar-17
Rs. in LacsNote No Rs. ln Lact

lncome:
Revenue f rom operations
Other lncome

E00.56

Total lncome 7,117.O9 800.56
Expenser :

Cost oI Materiats Consumed
Pur.hase ot Stmk.in.Trade 14 1,377.11 562.13

11.70

8.79
Changes in inventori6 of Finished Goods/Work-in-Progress/Stock.in-Trade 15

16

10.85
7.85Employee Benefits Expenses

Finance Costs

Depreciation & Amortisation Expense

Other Expenses 17 598.64 413.09

Total Ex es 1,994.45 99 5.91

Profit Before Tax 722.65 ( 19 5.3 5)

+
Tax Expense:

Current Tax
Deffered Tax

14.72
52.3r 51.93)

P or ear 1143.42)

Other Comprehensive lncome / (Lois)
' 

ltems that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or lo3s:

Erchange differences on translation oi foretgn operations 6.02 47.35

lncome tax relati to items that witl be rectassified to profit or loss

Net ot rehensive lncome / (Loss) to be ly to profit or loss 6.02
6.02'

42.3 5

42.35other Comprehensive lncome / (Loss) for the , net of tax
Total Com ncome for the 161.64 (1 1.0E)

Earning Per Equity Sh.re (Basic & Diluted) (Face Value NN l/-) (ln Rs.) 19 0.26 ( r.43 )

ln termr of our report attached
For G. R. l,{odi & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accou of Ajanta Pharma NiSeria Ltd.-r- (lCAl FRN : 11261 :H+I

Swapnll l{odi
Partner

Yogesh . Agraw.l
Director

Mumbai,24 t,201E

rit 2,217..@.

See accompanyrng notes forming paft of the financiat statements
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222.65

6.02
--1

C.rh Flow from Op€rating Activities

---Ht-

Ajanta
Statement ot Cashflows for the year ended 31 A{arch 2018

lI-_'.--

Adiustment for :

Exchan Fluctuation

tal
ReceivaTrade bte

42.15

Operatlng Profit before Working Capital Changes

Decrease (lncrease) in Other Non Current Assets

Decrease (lncrease) in Other Current Assets

Decrease (lncrease) in lnventories

31 March 2017

Profit before Tax (195. r5)

( { ln Lacs)

/.42.91],

66 (15 1)

(51.91)

430.91334.96
19.44

55.21

11.70
618.58

\149.21)
(67.03)

26.73
51.93

lncrease (Decrease) in Other Current Liabitities

(216,231 78.66

btes

ng

I

Ca3h Generated from Operationi
lncrease (Decrease) in Trade P

Net lncome tax paid

Net

Cash Flow from lnvesting Activitier
Proceeds from Share Capitat

------r----

602.91

78.66

602.91

487-33
524.26

-+
Net Cash uied in lnvesting Activities

I

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

+ Net lncrease / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

+f- ICash and Cash Equivalents as at the Beginning of the Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the End of the Year
Figures in brackets indicates outftow.

Note :

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under'lndirect Method as set out in Accounting Standard 7 (lnd AS - 7) "Statement of Cash Ftow .

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are sholrt-term balances (with an originatmaturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition).

See accompanying notes forming part of the financiaI statements.

For .nd on behalf of Eoard of Directors of
Alanta Pharma NlSeri. Ltd,

(lCAl FRN: ll I,1Q^ \./.^ ' *
Swapnjl
Partner

Yogeih M. Agrawal
Dlrectoa

A4umbal,24 2018

M. NO.
101514

oo/

(83e.44
51.93
44rii
10.85t

100.65

C. C.rh Flow from Flnanclm Actlvltles
lnterest Paid

- _,___t_
(r r 5.58)l

l
lI

ln terms of our report attached
For G, R. Modl & Co.

Chartered Accountants



ChanSes in equity 5hare
caoital durine the vear

Balance as at 31 March
2018

Balance as at 1 April
2017

A. Equity Share Capital

l

8. Other Equity

Subscribed & Paid up:

Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended I 1 March 20 18

37.10
36.05
16.05

Authori
lssued:

136.70

137.75
136.70

Securities General
Premium Reserve
Account

Share Based

Payment
Reserve

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Reserve

Other items of
other

comprehensive
income

Controlling
lnterests

Particulars Total Total EquityRetained
Earnings

Non-

Reserve

Capital
Redemption

Profit for the period

other comprehensive income
' l Lqr.rzl- 42.35

. (34.96)
(143.42',,

42.35
--------------+

(32.80) !.1q
(143.42).

47.35

at 1 Apri 2016 (34. e6)

_r
( 101 .08)42,35 (101 .08)

136.0432.80 40.19

VE ncomeota

143.42 136.04At 3'l arch 2017

nsfer to GeneraI reserve
(141.421

I o.a
155.62

6.O2

155.62PromTor the period

other comprehensive income
155.62

6.O7

I
TotaFcom prehensive i ncome 6.O2 161.641s5.62 i 161.64

(32.80) 12.20 46.20 25.59At 31 ,larch 2018 25.59

oo

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

\o LA,t/ '-<-.\ Iary

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

li{umbai, 24 April, 2018

(lCAl FRN : 11261

Yogesh l{. A8rawal
Director

Swapnil Modi
Partner

ln terms of our report attached
For G. R. L{odi 6 Co.

Chartered Accountants

I I
r

100.65

< in Lacs

E!qq65
100.65

rI

1
-1

M. No.
1D75t1

:---14



ended 3lStatement
31-llar-1731-r'tar- 18

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

4
A$ets

5.55
Losses

45.17
Other5

51.91
51.93

5
10.85

r 0.85

6
[Jnsecured

275.501,114.96
77 5.501,114.96

7 Cash equivalents

602.91487.33
lents
. ln Current AccountsBatance

Cash

487.33

8 As5ett
to

Advances to

49.223.92
0.87

-

iti

1,,1. No_
107571

Notes to nnarrctat

(Net)
]-

I I

lnventories
Stock-in'trade

1

-aonsidered

=

I

Advances -1-



(136

.nt Pharma Nlgeria
Noles to Fin.nclal Stttement tor the ye.r ended I I l,Lrch 2018

9 tqulty Share Ca t.l
r-1E 3l-l arl7

No. of Sharet Rs- ln L.cs No. of Shares Rs. in Lacs

6.oo.r]oml 137.75 ,00,00,000 17.10
Ordinary Share! ot NN I eac

Irsued;subscrlbed I P.ld up :

orilinar-h-res ol NN t eaaFfutty paid up 6,00,90,t00 116.70 
-1,00,00,000

16.05

Rec;rrclliation of number of .t the b€Alnnlng.nd .t the end of the ye.r
'17

No. of sharet R3. Lacs

1,00,00, t6.05 23.08

m3s'._4lEaoooT rL97Add=: Nufiber ol ahara's atlotterlas fulty pald-u-pidudng ahe year

Less: Number ofihar6 bought Eik fiing the year 

-
Ntmber ol-[ares oulatandrnS as afttre entrol the yeai

s,oo,oopoo

6 00,000 05

(. ) Details of Equity sh.rea held by e.ch 3hareholders holding more than 5%

31st 20lE
X Hol

31rt llar.h 201

No. ot shares % Holding

6,00,00, 100.00 r, 00,000
1

(d) shares relerved for lltue under oPtlons Nil Nrl

(32.80)
Ealance at the b€ginnjnB of the year

Add Jransferred from Statement of Profit &

02.E0)

Loss
(32.80) 80)

Exchange Flucturtion Reserve 1{.'9 +
40.19

+

Surplus in the St.tement of Proflt and Loss

B?lance at the beSinning of the Year
\143.121

Profit for lhe (r43.42)12.20

otal

M, NO.
10757 4

o

-.1
No. ot Sh.res Rs. L.cs

' (b) Rlghts, pr.ferenc.t.nd restrlctions .!t.ch.d to 3h.re3

The company har issued onty one ctass ol equityshares with voringlrights havinia par vatue;f NN 1 per snarJ I 
-

' 
The company have not de(lared any dividend.
tn the event of liquidation of ttre company;the holaercor equiii strares witl be enritted io raeive remajning assets of the company. The distrjtution

will be in proponion to the numb€6 of equiry shares helg by shareholders.

' No. oistraies

Nil Nit

l-_ 
--+1O OTHER EQUITY' 

General Recerve

+--T_+o-34
rt5.52



n-progress (B) - (A 11in lnve In-Tra

es to Financial Statement r the year ended 31 2018
31- ar-18
R5. in L.ci

31- ar- 17

R5. in Lacs

'11 Trade Payablet
Trade Payabtes to Retated Party

12 Other Current Liabilitles
Others payabtes E11.95 812.52

1.95 2

13 Revenue from OPerations
Sale of Products

2,?17.09 800.56

2,217.O 800.s6

928.44
448.67

562.33'l4a Purchaset of Traded Goods (Related Party)

l4b Purchases of Traded Goods (Others)

Changes in lnvenEdes of Finished Goods, Work'ln-Progresr and Stock'in_Trade llnveniories at the end of the year : l 10.85
Stock-in.trade

(A) 10.85

tnventoaCi at ttre Ueginningof the year : I
17.54

Stock-in'trade 10.85

(B) 85 54

Total changes in lnventoriet of Finished Goods, Work_in-progr$r and Sto<k_ln_Tr ade :

work-in-Process 10.E5

Tota

16 Empolyee Ben€flt ExPen

Sataries, Wages, Bonus

set I
and Altowances 8.79

7 8.7

-_-+---

'17 Other ExP€nses
28.29 68.19

44.42
9.61

6.84
0.56
6.08

Setting Expens6
260.?4

Ctearing and Forwarding
9.82

Travelting Expenses
6.37

Rent
0.54

Telephone, Telex E Postage
2a.96

Repairs to others
1,701

211.59

3.76
733.70

40.45

lnsurance +
Exchan8e Difference (Net) _ 49.12
Miscetlaneous ExPenses

.64 413.09

M. NO.
10i57 4

o

612.84 777.88

+Stock-in-Trade

-

11.70

7.85 f-

,l

- t--
1-----j-
I

_-1



Notes
18.

Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 201 8
Capital Management
Company's poticy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor,
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.
Management monitors the return on capitat, as wetl as the [eve[ of dividends to equity
sharehotders. The board of directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher
returns that might be possible with higher tevets of borrowing and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position. Company's target is to achieve a
return on capital above 30%; in 2017-18 the return was137% and in 2016-17 the return
was 195%

Company monitors capital using a ratio of'adjusted net debt'to'adjusted equity'. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total tiabitities, comprising interest-
bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under finance leases, less cash and cash
equivalents and short term investments. Adjusted equity comprises a[[ components
of equity.

Company's poticy is to keep the ratio betow 1.00 and its adjusted net debt to equity
ratio at 31 March 2018 was as follows, ( in Lacs

Particulars 31 March
2018

31 March
2017

Debt (Debt + Current Liabitities) 1,144.80 1,090.40
Less: Cash and Cash equivatents 487.33

A 957.47 487.48
Equity B 162.29 (ee.ee)
Net Debt to Equity ratio 5.90 (4.88)

19. Earnings Per share (EPS):
The numerator and denominator used to calculate Basic and Dituted Earnings Per
Share:

31 March
2018

31 March
2017

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Profit attributable to Equity shareholders-
for Basic EPS (t in Lacs)

155.62 (143.42)

Add: Ditutive effect on profit (t in Lacs) B Nit
Profit attributabte to Equity sharehotders
for computing Dituted EPS (< in Lacs)

C=A-B (143.42)

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
outstanding - for Basic EPS

6,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

Add: Ditutive effect of option outstanding-
Number of Equity Shares

E Nit

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
for Dituted EPS

6 00 00 000 1,00,00,000

Face Vatue per Equity Share (NN) 1 1

Basic Earnings Per Share (t) AlD 0.26 (1.43)

Diluted Earnings Per Shares (Q c/F 0.26 (1.43)

Employee Benefits
As required by lnd AS 19'Employee Benefits', the Company offers its emptoyees:
Short-term emptoyee benefits - These benefits inctude salaries and wages and other

(,

oo/

M.rio.
$75i 4

20.

602.91
Net Debt

A/B

Particulars

A

Nit
155.62

D

Nit

p=p+E

I



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 201 8

allowances which are paid immediatety. The total consideration paid in 2017-18 was

t 7.85 Lacs (Previous Year t 8.79 Lacs).

Retirement ptan - No provision has been made in respect of emptoyee retirement
benefits as employees are not etigibte for such benefits. Besides the company does

not have any pension scheme or any contracted agreement binding itsetf to the
employees.

21. Financial lnstrument - fair values and risk management

Fair value measurements < in Lacs

31 March 2018
Financial lnstruments by category FVTPL Amortised

Cost
FVTPL Amortised

Cost

Financial Assets
Trade Receivabtes 1 ,114.96 275.50

Cash and cash equivatents 487.33 602.91

Total Financial Assets 1 ,602.29 879.41

Financial Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities 831.95 817.52

Trade Payabtes 612.84 277 .88

Total Financial Liabilities 1 ,444,79 1 ,090.40

Fair Value Hierarch { in Lacs

Levet 1 - The hierarchy in [eve[ 'l includes financial instruments measured using
quoted prices. This includes mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds
are vatued using the closing NAV.

Levet 2 - The fair vatue of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market ([ike forward contracts) is determined using vatuation techniques which
maximise the use of observabte market data and rety as littte as possibte on entity-
specific estimates. lf att significant inputs required to fair vatue as instrument are
observabte, the instrument is inctuded in level 2.

Level 3 - lf one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observabte market
data, the instrument is inctuded in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities, etc. included in [eve[ 3.

A. Financial risk management
Company has exposure to following risks arising from financiat instruments:

. credit risk

r*oo
<)

l,l
t0 t

No

31 March 201 7
Level LevelFinancial assets and liabilities measured at

fair value
I I Ir I I t

Financial assets
fair value measurementNon recurring

1,114.96 775.50Trade Receivables
487.33 607.91Cash and cash equivatents

1 ,602.29 878.41Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
831.95 812.52Other Current Liabitities
612.84 277.88Trade Payabtes

1,090.401,444,79Total Financial Liabilities

74

31 March 2017

f

31 March 2018

---r-l

_-T-f_______lf---r----__l
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Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

. tiquidity risk
r market risk

i. Risk management framework
Company's board of directors has overalt responsibility for the estabtishment and
oversight of the Company's risk management framework" Management is responsible
for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies, under the
guidance of Audit Committee.

Company's risk management policies are established to identify and anatyse the risks
faced by it, to set appropriate risk timits and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularty
to reftect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. Company,
through its training and procedures aims to maintain a disciptined and constructive
control environment in which atl emptoyees understand their rotes and obligations.

Company's Audit committee oversees how management monitors comptiance with
the Company's risk management poticies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy
of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.
The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. lnternal audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controts and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

ii. Credit risk
Company's credit risk is minimal, The trade receivables arise mainly from
transactions with its approved customers. The maximum exposure to credit on these
transactions is equal to the carrying amount of these financiat instruments.
Customers are subject to stringent financiat, credit and legat verification process. ln
addition, trade receivabte balances are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure
timety cotlections. Accordingly, the Company's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which
comprise cash in banks and receivabtes (except for advances to suppliers), the
Company's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equat to the carrying amount of these instruments. The Company
timits its exposure to credit risks by depositing its cash only with financiat institutions
duty evaluated and approved by the Board of Directors. The Company's receivabtes
is minimat since no defautt payments were made by the counterparties. An

impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individuat basis for
major ctients.

iii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and
future cash and cottaterat obtigations without incurring unacceptabte losses. The

Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum tevets of tiquidity to meet
its cash and coltateral requirements. The Company ctosety monitors its tiquidity
position and deptoys a robust cash management system. Presently the Company has

existing [ong-term toans that fund capitaI expenditures. Working capital
requirements are adequately addressed by internatty
receivables are kept within manageable levets.

t.No.
1C?574

generated funds. Trade



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

iv. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates,

interest rates and equity prices - witt affect the company's income or the vatue of
its hotdings of financiat instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage Jnd controt market risk exposures within acceptabte parameters, while
optimising the return. Financiat instruments affected by market risk inctude toans

and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financiaI instruments.
Company's actlvities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. At[ transactions are

carried out within the guidelines set by the risk management committee.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis of derivatives and the
proportion of financiat instruments in foreign currencies are at[ constant. The analysis

exctudes the impact of movements in market variabtes on the carrying vatue of
postemptoyment benefit obtigations, provisions and on the non'financial assets and

liabitities. The sensitivity of the retevant income statement item is the effect of the
assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets

and financiat tiabitities hetd as of 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

a) Currency risk
The Company's foreign exchange risk results primarily from movements of the
Nigerian Niara against the US dottar with respect to US dottar denominated financial
asiets and tiabitities. The Company's transactional currency exposures arise from its
inventories which is 100% purchases from Hotding company in US dottar. The company
regutarty reviews the trend of the foreign exchange rates.

The fottowing tabte anatyses foreign currency risk as of 31 March 2018 and 31 March

2017: t in Lacs
31 l{arch 201 8 31 March 2017

Trade Pa abtes (612.84\ (277.88)

Net Assets / (Liabitities) (612.84) (777.88)

For the year ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, every percentage Point
depreciation / appreciation in the exchange rate between the Nigerian Naira and

respective currencies has affected the Company's incremental profit before tax as

r below: < in Lacs

22. Note on foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities;
During the year, the Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contract' The
year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been mitigated by a derivative
instrument or otherwise are as betow:

Effect on profit
before tax

Change in currency
exchange rate

153.21 (153.21)+257" I (-75%)31 March 2018
69.47 t (69.47)+75/. I (-75Yo)

Foreign
Currency

{ in Lacs Foreign
Currency

Amt in Lacs

{ in LacsParticulars

31 March 2018 31 March 201731 March 2018 31 March 2017

USD

N.
277.88 9.40Amount

Payabte
612.84

tJ. NO.
107574

Particulars

Year

31 March 2017

Foreign
Currency

Amt in Lacs

4.28
Rt



Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

b) lnterest rate risk
The Company have no borrowings and hence there is no interest rate risk.

c) Price risk
Company does not have any exposure to price risk, as there is no equity investments.

23. Disclosure for operating leases under lnd AS 17 - "Leases":
The Company have taken a premise under operating lease. The lease is for a period
of 12 to 24 months and are renewable upon mutua[ consent of the parties. There are
no contingent rents. The lease payments of t 6.37 Lacs (Previous Year { 6.84 Lacs)
are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss under "Rent" under Note'17.

24. Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
There are no contingent tiabitities and commitments by the Company.

25. Related party disclosure as required by lnd AS 24 are given betow:

A) Relationships:
Category I - Holding Company & Fellow Subsidiary

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia (Hotding Company)

B Followin transactions were carried out with related rties:

c Amount outstandin as on 31 March 2018

26, The Company has one segment of activity namety "Pharmaceuticals".

ln terms of our report attached

For G. R. Modi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
lCAl FRN : 1

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Ajanta Pharma Nigeria Ltd.

OD

NC
-l75 4

L/W'@ (1

Swapnil Modi
Partner

'i,,l,'to

\ Yogesh M. Agrawal
Director

Sr.
No.

Particulars Categ
ory

31 March 2018
{ in Lacs

31 March 2017
{ in Lacs

1 Purchase of Goods:
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia I 926.74 562.33

2 Equity Share Capital:
Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia I 100.65

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia I 162.06

5r.
No.

Categ
ory

31 March
2017

( in Lacs

31 March
2016

{ in Lacs
1 Trade Payable :

Ajanta Pharma Ltd., lndia I 617.84 277.88

Mumbai, 24 Aprit 2018

-:

(

-A

3. Bad Debts

H

Particulars


